2011 ABET ANNUAL REPORT

For Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2011



TABLE OF CONTENTS

FROM THE PRESIDENT AND THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
2011 ABET AT A GLANCE
Statistics: 2010-11 Accreditation Cycle
Statistics: Accreditation Trends
Statistics: 2010-11 Volunteer Pool Characteristics
2011 HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR
Improving Our Quality
Reaching Core Constituents
Engaging Globally
2011 ABET Events
2011 ABET Awards
In Memoriam
2010-11 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
2010-11 Statement of Financial Position
2010-11 Statement of Activities
2010-11 Statement of Cash Flows
2010-11 Notes to Financial Statements
2011 ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
2010-11 Board of Directors
2010-11 Academic Advisory Council
2010-11 Industry Advisory Council
2010-11 Global Council
2010-11 Accreditation Council
2010-11 Applied Science Accreditation Commission
2010-11 Computing Accreditation Commission 42
2010-11 Engineering Accreditation Commission
2010-11 Technology Accreditation Commission
2010-11 Team Chairs
2010-11 Program Evaluators 51
ABET Professional Staff

To view the original HTML pages, visit www.abet.org/2011-annual-report-index/.

Copyright© 2012 by ABET® Printed in the United States of America. All rights reserved.

Published by: ABET 111 Market Place, Suite 1050 Baltimore, MD 21202

FROM THE PRESIDENT AND THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Improving quality – that's been at the heart of ABET's mission for more than 79 years. Each year, over 85,000 students graduate from ABET-accredited programs in the applied science, computing, engineering, and engineering technology fields.

ABET has had an enormous impact on their future, and we're proud of our legacy of ensuring quality educational experiences for those preparing to enter the technical professions.

This year, in an effort to continuously improve as an organization and to continue that legacy of quality, we've focused our efforts to more fully engage with our **core constituents**: member societies, volunteers, academe, industry and government, and the general public. ABET's 2011 Annual Report describes our achievements.

Engaging Our Member Societies & Volunteers



Since our founding in 1932, we've grown from an initial membership of seven professional and technical societies to 31 members. Our newest member, Women in

Engineering ProActive Network (WEPAN), is focused on assisting women engineering students achieve success, and is helping ABET achieve even greater diversity within its membership and volunteer pool.

As a federation of diverse societies, ABET is committed to building and maintaining a strong partnership with each of its members. Although collectively we share a common purpose, each society is unique in its membership and mission. The challenge for us is to recognize the varied needs of each member society and determine how we can best meet them, while vigorously building a strong coalition amongst them to perform accreditation activities.

To strengthen relationships with our member societies, we must strive to be aware of their unique perspectives on a wide range of critical issues – both short-term and far-reaching, strategic issues. This year, we created and staffed at ABET Headquarters a senior-level position



Phillip E. Borrowman. P.E., S.E., and Michael K.J. Milligan, Ph.D., P.E.

dedicated to better support and engage our societies. We can be more responsive to their individual needs while growing our partnership with each of them.

To ensure a future that all societies will embrace, we embarked on a long-overdue evaluation of our strategic mission and vision. The Strategic Planning Task Force, formed this past spring, began a thorough review of our existing mission statement to make certain we're properly focused and positioned to support the future evolution of technical education on a global scale. We've also tasked all Board members to serve on a variety of strategic committees, to further enhance member engagement.

Professional development of our volunteer force is critical to ABET's core mission – providing the best accreditation review possible. To help improve consistency in the evaluation process, a volunteer-led training committee spent three years developing new training courses for current program evaluators and team chairs.

These courses were introduced online, and more than 1,400 volunteers completed them to prepare for 2011 program reviews. This training will bring a greater level of quality and stability to our accreditation process and will help develop our volunteer force into an even more efficient and effective team. We've also increased regular communications to all of our volunteers to ensure they're up-to-date on a number of important ABET activities.

(continued)

Engaging Academe



We've made significant advances in working more closely with our academic partners. We reached a notable milestone this year: ABET's Academic Advisory Council

celebrated its first anniversary. This permanent council of academic leaders advises the Board on a wide range of issues from the academic perspective and is instrumental in bridging the communications gap between ABET and academe.

In addition, ABET hosted the first-ever "ABET Day" at ASEE's Annual Conference in Vancouver, BC. This day-long event directly engaged faculty members with sessions such as:

- "What's New in ABET Accreditation"
- "Dispelling Myths: Common Misconceptions about ABET and Accreditation"
- "Educational Innovation and ABET-Accredited Programs: Can They Co-Exist?"

We've also continued to reach out to deans, department heads, and faculty in an increasing number of venues.

Engaging Industry & Government



Our industry and government partnerships are critical in helping to shape tomorrow's professionals. Without their direct support as volunteers, our mission would lack

a shared purpose. We've increased our outreach activities to industry and government on a number of levels.

We've supported our industry-centric member societies by:

- Participating in their conference expositions with on-site display booths
- Drafting articles for society magazines
- Incorporating industry and government representatives into our discussion panels
- Addressing leaders directly at industry gatherings.

Additionally, ABET's Industry Advisory Council has worked hard to keep us focused on the "big issues" facing technical education in the rapidly changing landscape of economic and industrial globalization.

Engaging the Public



ABET's mission is to serve the public through the promotion and advancement of quality education. We don't take this responsibility lightly and go to great lengths to

inform and educate this most crucial of all constituents.

This fall, we introduced our new website, www.abet.org, with an updated design and fresh content, including information for students and their families. We've also created a user-friendly web experience with a wealth of resources:

- Information on the value of accreditation
- Fundamentals about technical careers
- Real-world examples of employers who seek out graduates of ABET-accredited programs.

This will educate students about ABET accreditation while also helping them choose an accredited program – ensuring they will have a high-quality educational experience.

Global Engagement

We have continued our role as a global leader by:

- Assisting foreign accrediting agencies
- Providing leadership to the International Engineering Alliance, especially through the Washington, Sydney, and Seoul Accords
- Accrediting programs throughout the world, including 268 programs at 55 institutions in 22 countries outside of the United States.

ABET AT A GLANCE

ABET Is

- The gold standard in post-secondary technical education accreditation.
- The recognized accreditor for applied science, computing, engineering, and technology programs.
- A federation of 31 professional and technical societies that represent the professions that graduates of ABETaccredited programs serve.
- A 501(c) 3 nonprofit staffed by 36 full- and part-time employees and more than 2,000 volunteers.

ABET's Vision

ABET will provide world leadership in assuring quality and in stimulating innovation in applied science, computing, engineering, and technology education.

ABET's Mission

ABET serves the public through the promotion and advancement of education in applied science, computing, engineering, and technology. ABET will:

- Accredit educational programs.
- Promote quality and innovation in education.
- Consult and assist in the development and advancement of education worldwide in a financially selfsustaining manner.

- Communicate with our constituencies and the public regarding activities and accomplishments.
- Anticipate and prepare for the changing environment and the future needs of constituencies.
- Manage the operations and resources to be effective and fiscally responsible.

ABET's Impact

Approximately 85,000 students graduate from ABETaccredited programs each year.

ABET's Scope of Services

- Reviews programs not institutions, departments, degrees, or individuals – to ensure they meet the standards necessary to produce graduates who are ready to enter their professions.
- Accredits programs at the associate's, bachelor's, and master's levels.
- Is a peer-review accreditor, meaning that professionals working for one of the four ABET Accreditation Commissions – Applied Science, Computing, Engineering, and Technology – conduct all accreditation evaluations, render decisions, and determine actions.
- Offers workshops, conferences, and educational programming to institutions to help them understand the accreditation process and how to improve their programs' quality.

Statistics: 2010-11 Accreditation Cycle

Actions Resulting from Program Reviews, 2010-11

	ASAC	CAC	EAC	TAC	Total
General Review	19	67	372	109	567
Interim Report	4	37	104	69	214
Interim Visit	0	4	3	4	11
Other	0	0	0	2	2

Programs Visited by Curricular Area, Page 1*

		ASAC		CAC	EA	AC	TAC		
Program Area	Associate	Bachelor's	Master's	Bachelor's	Bachelor's	Master's	Associate	Bachelor's	AII
Aerospace	_	_	_	_	9	_	_	_	9
Agricultural	-	-	-	-	5	-	-	-	5
Air Conditioning	-	-	-	-	-	-	1	-	1
Architectural	-	-	-	-	2	-	2	1	5
Bioengineering and Biomedical	-	-	-	-	9	1	1	2	13
Biological	-	-	-	_	4	_	_	_	4
Chemical	-	-	_	_	24	-	_	1	25
Civil	-	-	_	_	41	-	7	5	53
Computer	_	_	_	_	43	_	3	9	55
Computer Science	-	-	_	51	_	-	_	_	52
Construction	-	-	_	_	4	-	3	2	9
Drafting and Design (General)	-	-	-	-	-	-	1	-	1
Electrical	-	-	-	-	63	-	12	22	97
Electromechanical	-	-	-	-	-	-	1	-	1
Engineering Management	-	-	_	_	5	-	_	_	5
Engineering, Engineering Physics, and Engineering Science	_	-	_	1	12	-	1	1	15
Environmental	-	-	_	-	11	-	2	_	13
Environmental, Health, and Safety	_	1	-	_	_	_	-	_	1
General Criteria Only	1	-	1	5	17	-	3	3	30
Geological	-	-	_	-	8	-	_	_	8
Health Physics	-	1	-	-	_	-	_	_	1

* Individual programs may embrace more than one curricular area, and thus may be counted more than once in this table.

Programs Visited by Curricular Area, Page 2*

		ASAC		CAC	EAC		TAC		
Program Area	Associate	Bachelor's	Master's	Bachelor's	Bachelor's	Master's	Associate	Bachelor's	All
Industrial	-	-	-	-	17	-	3	2	22
Industrial Hygiene	-	1	6	-	-	-	-	_	7
Information Systems	_	-	_	9	_	_	_	_	9
Information Technology	-	-	-	6	-	-	-	_	6
Instrumentation and Control Systems	-	_	-	_	-	-	1	_	1
Manufacturing	-	-	-	-	5	1	1	6	13
Materials	-	-	-	-	11	-	-	_	11
Mechanical	_	-	_	-	53	-	9	15	77
Metallurgical	_	_	_	_	3	_	_	_	3
Mining	-	-	-	-	5	-	-	_	5
Naval Architecture and Marine	-	-	-	-	4	-	-	_	4
Nuclear and Radiological	-	-	-	-	4	-	-	_	4
Ocean	-	-	-	-	5	-	-	-	5
Optics	-	-	-	-	2	-	-	-	2
Petroleum	-	-	-	-	6	-	-	-	6
Safety	-	3	1	-	-	_	-	_	4
Software	-	-	-	-	6	-	-	-	6
Surveying and Geomatics	1	3	-	-	-	-	2	_	6
Systems	-	-	_	-	5	2	-	-	7
Telecommunications	-	-	_	_	-	_	-	1	1
TOTAL	2	9	8	72	384	4	53	70	602

* Individual programs may embrace more than one curricular area, and thus may be counted more than once in this table.

Actions for General Reviews, 2006-11

	ASAC		CAC		EAC		TAC		All	
	#	%	#	%	#	%	#	%	#	%
NGR	10	52.6%	30	44.8%	310	83.3%	78	71.6%	428	75.5%
IR	9	47.4%	32	47.8%	48	12.9%	27	24.8%	116	20.5%
IV	0	0%	1	1.5%	10	2.7%	2	1.8%	13	2.3%
SC	0	0%	3	4.5%	0	0%	1	0.9%	4	0.7%
NA	0	0%	1	1.5%	4	1.1%	1	0.9%	6	1.1%

	LEGEND									
NGR	NGR Next General Review									
IR	Interim Report									
IV	Interim Visit									
sc	Show Cause									
NA	Not to Accredit									

Actions for General Reviews Across All Commissions, 2010-11



Programs Accredited by Curricular Area As of October 1, 2011, Page 1*

		ASAC		CAC	EAC		TAC		
Program Area	Associate	Bachelor's	Master's	Bachelor's	Bachelor's	Master's	Associate	Bachelor's	All
Aeronautical	_	-	-	-	-	-	1	2	3
Aerospace	_	-	-	_	72	3	_	_	75
Agricultural	-	—	-	-	33	-	-	-	33
Air Conditioning	-	—	-	-	_	_	2	1	3
Architectural	-	—	-	-	20	1	15	7	43
Automotive	-	—	-	-	-	-	-	2	2
Bioengineering and Biomedical	-	—	-	-	76	2	3	8	89
Biological	-	-	-	-	19	-	-	-	19
Ceramic	-	—	-	-	4	-	-	-	4
Chemical	-	-	-	-	184	1	2	3	190
Civil	-	—	-	-	255	1	36	27	319
Computer	-	—	-	-	247	3	21	35	306
Computer Science	-	—	-	289	1	_	-	-	290
Construction	-	—	-	-	14	2	10	25	51
Drafting and Design (General)	-	—	-	-	-	_	2	1	3
Drafting and Design (Mechanical)	-	-	-	-	-	-	4	1	5
Electrical	-	-	-	-	351	4	91	102	548
Electromechanical	-	-	-	-	-	-	4	8	12
Engineering Management	-	-	-	-	14	1	-	-	15
Engineering Mechanics	-	-	-	-	5	-	-	-	5
Engineering, Engineering Physics, and Engineering Science	-	-	-	1	77	-	5	19	102
Environmental	_	-	-	-	64	5	4	_	73
Environmental, Health, and Safety	_	3	_	-	_	_	_	_	3
Fire Protection	_	_	_	-	1	_	_	2	3
General Criteria Only	1	1	1	10	33	1	12	16	75
Geological	-	-	-	-	18	-	-	-	18

* Individual programs may embrace more than one curricular area, and thus may be counted more than once in this table.

Programs Accredited by Curricular Area As of October 1, 2011, Page 2*

		ASAC		CAC	EAC		TAC		
Program Area	Associate	Bachelor's	Master's	Bachelor's	Bachelor's	Master's	Associate	Bachelor's	All
Health Physics	-	4	4	_	-	_	-	_	8
Industrial	-	-	-	_	118	2	5	9	134
Industrial Hygiene	-	6	27	_	-	_	-	_	33
Information Systems	-	-	_	46	-	_	-	_	46
Information Technology	-	-	-	21	-	_	-	_	21
Instrumentation and Control Systems	-	-	-	-	-	-	4	2	6
Manufacturing	-	-	-	-	22	1	9	26	58
Marine	-	-	-	-	-	_	-	3	3
Materials	-	-	-	-	62	_	-	-	62
Mechanical	-	-	-	-	327	2	59	68	456
Metallurgical	-	-	-	-	10	_	-	-	10
Mining	-	-	-	-	17	_	-	-	17
Naval Architecture and Marine	-	-	-	-	12	-	-	-	12
Nuclear and Radiological	-	-	-	-	22	1	2	2	27
Ocean	-	-	-	-	11	1	-	-	12
Optics	-	-	-	-	5	-	1	-	6
Petroleum	-	-	-	-	24	-	-	-	24
Safety	1	8	2	-	-	-	-	-	11
Software	-	-	-	-	23	-	-	-	23
Surveying and Geomatics	1	11	-	-	5	-	9	5	31
Systems	-	-	-	-	16	3	-	-	19
Telecommunications	-	-	-	-	2	1	2	5	10
Welding	_	-	_	_	1	_	-	1	2
TOTAL	3	33	34	367	2,165	35	303	380	3,320

* Individual programs may embrace more than one curricular area, and thus may be counted more than once in this table.

Accredited Programs by Commission (as of 10.01.11)



Institutions with Accredited Programs by Commission (as of 10.01.11)



10 Largest Curricular Areas by Number of Accredited Programs Across All Commissions (as of 10.01.11)



Statistics: Accreditation Trends

Number of Accredited Programs and Institutions Having Accredited Programs, 2006-11**

	ASAC		CAC		EAC		TAC		All*	
	Pgms	Insts	Pgms	Insts	Pgms	Insts	Pgms	Insts	Pgms	Insts
2006	75	57	309	253	1,892	383	699	237	2,964	614
2007	77	58	326	263	1,979	398	690	239	3,061	629
2008	74	57	345	273	2,083	425	693	239	3,183	655
2009	70	54	375	296	2,157	441	702	238	3,288	678
2010	70	53	367	292	2,154	442	683	231	3,259	674
2011	70	53	365	291	2,141	442	632	216	3,193	660

* Individual programs may embrace more than one curricular area, and thus may be counted more than once in this table.

** Data above may differ from that reported in previous versions of this publication as a result of retroactive accreditation. Retroactive accreditation occurs when a commission extends accreditation to encompass the academic year prior to the one in which a program's on-site review was conducted. Retroactive accreditation may be applied to cover a new program's early graduates, whose work is usually evaluated during the initial accreditation visit.

*** Statistics reported for a single commission may vary greatly from year to year, depending on criteria changes, number of programs visited, and other factors. If you have any questions, please contact the Accreditation Department at <u>accreditation@abet.org</u>.

Actions for General Reviews, 2006-11

Applied Science Accreditation Commission (ASAC)

	NGR	IR	IV	SC	NA
2006	10%	90%	0%	0%	0%
2007	33%	56%	0%	11%	0%
2008	62%	38%	0%	0%	0%
2009	69%	31%	0%	0%	0%
2010	71%	14%	0%	14%	9%
2011	53%	47%	0%	0%	0%

Engineering Accreditation Commission (EAC)

	NGR	IR	IV	SC	NA
2006	65%	26%	9%	0%	0%
2007	65%	30%	5%	0%	0%
2008	67%	32%	1%	0%	0%
2009	76%	23%	1%	0%	0%
2010	76%	22%	0%	0%	1%
2011	83%	13%	3%	0%	1%

Computing Accreditation Commission (CAC)

	NGR	IR	IV	SC	NA
2006	56%	32%	12%	0%	0%
2007	48%	39%	11%	2%	0%
2008	47%	37%	15%	1%	0%
2009	43%	50%	7%	0%	0%
2010	48%	40%	9%	2%	2%
2011	45%	48%	1%	4%	1%

Technology Accreditation Commission (TAC)

	NGR	IR	IV	SC	NA
2006	52%	42%	6%	0%	0%
2007	51%	43%	3%	1%	1%
2008	37%	49%	0%	14%	0%
2009	57%	39%	2%	2%	0%
2010	47%	42%	3%	7%	0%
2011	72%	25%	2%	1%	1%

LEGEND				
NGR	Next General Review			
IR	Interim Report			
IV	Interim Visit			
SC	Show Cause			
NA	Not to Accredit			

5 Largest Increases in Number of Accredited Programs by Curricular Area, 2006-11



Curricular Areas with Largest Percentages of Accredited Programs Added

Statistics: 2010-11 Volunteer Characteristics



* Please note that data are self-reported and current at time of publication.

2011 HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

ABET would not be the gold standard in global postsecondary technical education accreditation if the organization merely conducted program reviews. Many activities and individuals contribute to ABET's status as a leader in educational quality assurance and its aim to continuously improve its services and processes. These highlights detail the activities upon which ABET has focused over the past year and recognize some notable members of the ABET community.



Improving Our Quality

ABET is the global standard in accreditation and quality assurance in technical education. As such, ABET seeks to continuously review and improve its own systems and operations. In 2011, ABET made several changes aimed at enhancing the effectiveness and efficiency of the accreditation experience.

Harmonization Efforts

ABET introduced harmonized versions of the general accreditation criteria, the *Accreditation Policy and Procedures Manual*, and the self-study questionnaire templates for the 2011-12 accreditation cycle. Changes include common terminology across all documents and renumbered general criteria that address topics in the same order, regardless of the commissions involved. These changes mean less confusion for institutions with accredited programs that fall under more than one discipline, such as computer science and engineering.

Accreditation Policy and Procedures Manual

A major upgrade to the *Accreditation Policy and Procedures Manual* went into effect for the 2011-12 accreditation cycle. The new version creates flexibility in the accreditation process to review programs outside of the United States and programs delivered through non-traditional methods more effectively.

Multi-Campus Review Pilot

The Technology Accreditation Commission (TAC) used a trial process to evaluate engineering technology programs offered by a single institution with multiple locations across the United States. The institution requested single program accreditations for three programs, irrespective of location. The country was divided into six geographic regions, and separate review teams visited two locations in each region on a sampling basis. Then, an additional review team visited the institution's headquarters and completed the final report. At present, the potential applications of this "pilot" process for future accreditation requests from multi-campus programs are under review.

Reaching Core Constituents

WEPAN Becomes ABET Associate Member Society



In 2011, Women in Engineering ProActive Network (WEPAN) became an Associate Member

Society of ABET. WEPAN reaches 42,890 female engineering students, or 60 percent of the female engineering students in the United States, through campus-based programs and initiatives. Its membership in ABET will help both organizations reach their shared goal of supporting women as they study and pursue careers in the technical fields.

ABET Revitalizes Public Website

While ABET's previous website featured valuable information, it did not meet contemporary standards for ease of navigation, graphic design, and interactive features. The organi-



zation embarked upon an extensive redesign to make the site more accessible for end users who know little about ABET, as well as for members of the ABET community.

The revitalized website features:

- Fresh design with universal appeal and more dynamic imagery
- Improved accredited program search engine
- Step-by-step explanation of the accreditation process
- Sections tailored to the specific needs of students and families, faculty and administrators, current and potential ABET volunteers, and industry and government leadership
- "Explore Technical Careers" section for students
- Listings of positions that require graduation from ABETaccredited programs

Launched in the fall of 2011, the new website serves a wide range of audiences and more clearly directs them to relevant resources.

Academic Advisory Council Provides New Perspectives

The ABET Board of Directors formed the Academic Advisory Council (AAC) to enhance its relationship with the academic community. The AAC's inaugural meeting brought together



deans, associate deans, and other academic leaders from a cross-section of institutions to provide their views on ABET's criteria, policies, and procedures. Over its first year, the AAC identified the following as high-priority issues for ABET:

- Program evaluator consistency
- The direct and allocated costs incurred by institutions and programs preparing for an ABET review
- The impact that current ABET policies and procedures have on innovation in technical education

ASEE Conference Includes First-Ever "ABET Day"

ABET is expanding its efforts to interact more systematically with educators in technology fields. For example, ABET hosted a day-long series of presentations at the American Society for Engineering Education Conference and Expo in June. Volunteer and staff leaders made presentations on current issues and trends in accreditation and on common myths about ABET and accreditation. Also, they helped facilitate a showcase of innovative degree programs that schools have introduced within the framework of ABET accreditation.

Engaging Globally



ABET is the global standard in accreditation and quality assurance in technical education. The organization conducts reviews in countries outside of the United States and

also engages in other activities to provide leadership in promoting the continuous quality improvement of technical education.

Mutual Recognition Agreements

Mutual Recognition Agreements (MRAs) recognize the substantial equivalence of accreditation systems and agree that graduates of accredited programs are prepared



for entry-level practice in their professions.

In June 2011, ABET representatives attended the International Engineering Alliance Meeting 2011 (IEAM2011), the business meeting of the Washington, Sydney, and Seoul Accords.

- 1995-96 ABET President Winfred Phillips concluded his second (and final) term as Chair of the Washington Accord.
- ABET Past President David Holger was elected as Deputy Chair for the Sydney Accord and as Deputy Chair of the International Engineering Alliance.
- Former CAC Member-at-Large Joseph Turner was reelected for a second term as Chair of the Seoul Accord.

Memoranda of Understanding

ABET has signed 15 Memoranda of Understanding (MOUs) with higher education agencies or organizations outside of the U.S. to guide the sharing of best practices in accreditation. ABET may assist in developing an accreditation system in another country or region where appropriate.

In 2011, ABET supported its MOUs by conducting workshops and seminars, assisting other organizations with their evaluation visits, and welcoming representatives from other organizations to observe ABET review visits.

Other Global Activities

In addition, ABET volunteers and staff:

- Conducted reviews of 91 programs at 26 institutions in 16 countries outside of the United States.
- Conducted a three-day version of the Institute for the Development of Excellence in Assessment Leadership (IDEAL) in Singapore, at the request of the Institution of Engineers Singapore.
- Conducted a workshop at the pre-conference of the Latin American and Caribbean Consortium of Engineering and Technology (LACCEI) Annual Conference in Medellin, Colombia.
- Participated in a seminar on Science, Technology, Engineering, Architecture, and Math (STEAM) education in China and gave a presentation at the graduation ceremony for the 1+2+1 program, which the American Association of State Colleges and Universities (AASCU) and the Chinese Center for International Educational Exchange (CCIEE) jointly organized.
- Presented one of the keynote speeches, on "Improving the Quality of Engineering Education Through Accreditation Activities," during the Inaugural Convention 2011 of the Federation of Engineering Institutions of Asia and the Pacific (FEIAP) in Singapore.
- Participated in the International Conference on Accreditation, which focused on best practices in accreditation, in Chennai, India.



2011 ABET Events

2011 ABET Annual Conference

The 2011 ABET Annual Conference, themed around "Innovation in Technical Education," featured keynote presentations by:



 Vinton G. Cerf, Ph.D., is Vice President and Chief

Vinton G. Cerf. Ph.D. (left) and James Plummer, Ph.D.

Internet Evangelist for Google and is widely known as one of the "Fathers of the Internet." Cerf kicked off the conference with a discussion about the value of innovation and its role in higher education.

James Plummer, Ph.D., the Dean of the School of Engineering at Stanford University, elaborated about how his school is implementing new approaches in his presentation, "Educating Engineers for 21st Century Careers."

The conference, which was held in Baltimore and attracted more than 300 participants, also included interactive panel discussions and presentations that focused on fostering innovation in curriculum, student engagement, and workforce development.

2011 ABET Symposium



A record-breaking 490 participants attended the SYMPOSIUM 2011 ABET Symposium

in Indianapolis. This year's events included:

- Seven three-hour Pre-Symposium Workshops,
- More than 60 interactive sessions about educational assessment and ABET accreditation,
- Roundtable discussions where commission leaders answered questions about the accreditation process, and
- A resource room featuring 40 samples of well-written self-studies.

IDEAL

The Institute for the Development of Excellence in Assessment Leadership (IDEAL) is a 4½-day professional development opportunity for those leading the assessment process in their programs or on their campus. It teaches participants the fundamentals of:

- assessment principles,
- facilitation skills, and



change management.

This year, ABET hosted two sessions of IDEAL - one in Orlando and another in Baltimore - that attracted a total of 71 participants from around the world.

Since IDEAL's inception in 2006, nearly 500 participants have attended these sessions and become educational assessment leaders.

Faculty Workshops

ABET continued to offer its popular Faculty Workshop on Sustainable Assessment Processes. In 2011, workshop facilitators conducted regional sessions across the United States to make it more convenient and more affordable for participants to attend. Three day-long sessions were held in:

- Dallas.
- Santa Clara, and
- Tampa.

These sessions helped more than 150 participants to broaden their understanding about assessment processes, develop measurable learning outcomes, and learn about new data collection methods.

2011 ABET Awards



(left to right) Michael S. Leonard, Ph.D., P.E.; Henry R. Bauer, III, Ph.D.; A. Joseph Turner, Jr., Ph.D.; Gerald L. Engel, D.Ed.; and Gayle J. Yaverbaum, Ph.D.

Linton E. Grinter Distinguished Service Award

Recipients of the Linton E. Grinter Distinguished Service Award, ABET's highest honor, are those ABET volunteers who follow in the namesake's footsteps and who surpass even the highest service expectations of the organization. They are acknowledged for outstanding contributions to the technical disciplines through their work in ABETrelated activities.

A. Joseph Turner, Jr., Ph.D.

Professor Emeritus of Computer Science, Clemson University

"For outstanding leadership in computing accreditation worldwide, including more than 25 years of service to ABET and CSAB, and for being the catalyst behind the growth of computing accreditation in the United States over the last 25 years."

Fellow of ABET Awards

The ABET Fellow Award is presented annually to recognize those individuals who have given sustained quality service to the ABET-related professions, in general, and to education within the ABET disciplines, in particular, through the activities of ABET.

Henry R. Bauer, III, Ph.D.

Professor Emeritus of Computer Science, University of Wyoming

"In recognition of long dedicated service to computing accreditation both domestically and internationally; and for providing leadership in computing accreditation."

Gerald L. Engel, D.Ed.

Frederick H. Leonhardt Professor of Computer Science and Engineering, University of Connecticut, Stamford

"For leadership in the establishment of computer science accreditation in the United States and for playing a key role in the establishment of CSAB, Inc., and the merger of CSAB, Inc., and ABET."

(continued)

Michael S. Leonard, Ph.D., P.E.

Senior Associate Dean and Professor, School of Engineering, Mercer University, and ABET Adjunct Training Director

"For exemplary leadership in helping develop and deliver the ABET outcomes-based accreditation message to faculty members and program evaluators in the United States and across the world."

Gayle J. Yaverbaum, Ph.D.

Professor Emerita of Information Systems, Pennsylvania State University, Harrisburg

"In recognition of long and dedicated service to computing accreditation and for leadership in establishing information systems accreditation."

In Memoriam

Capt. Kent W. Hamlin, P.E.



Hamlin was a program evaluator from the American Nuclear Society (ANS) and then went on to represent ANS on the ABET Technology Accreditation Commission in 2008. He was serving his third year in this capacity at the time of his death.

Hamlin was President of KWH Associates, LLC, in Powder Springs, GA, having recently retired from the Institute of Nuclear Power Operations after nearly 28 years with the organization. In addition, he was a retired United States Navy Captain.

Elizabeth A. Judson, Ph.D.



Judson had been associated with ABET for more than 10 years. She represented the American Ceramic Society (National Institute of Ceramic Engineers) on the Engineering Accreditation Commission (EAC) from 2005 to 2010 and was serving as a 2010-11 Member-at-Large on the

EAC at the time of her death.

Judson was a consultant to the University-Industry Demonstration Partnership of the National Academies as well as a general manager of a ceramic armor start-up company associated with Georgia Tech.

Robert M. Laurenson, III, P.E.



At the time of his death, Laurenson was a representative director from ASME (formerly the American Society of Mechanical Engineers) on the ABET Board of Directors. An ABET volunteer since 1985, Laurenson was a member of the Engineering Accreditation Commis-

sion (EAC) and later chaired EAC for the 2005-06 accreditation cycle. Also, he played a pivotal role in improving and implementing ABET's volunteer recruitment and selection practices.

Laurenson had a 37-year career with The Boeing Company, and after his retirement, he served as a consultant to ASME and to numerous engineering firms in the Washington, D.C., area.

David R. Reyes-Guerra, Ph.D., P.E.



Reyes-Guerra was ABET's first Executive Director from 1973 to 1993. He joined ABET's predecessor organization, the Engineer's Council for Professional Development (ECPD), as its Guidance Director in 1967 and served as its Executive Secretary from 1971 to

1973. In his 20 years as ECPD/ABET Executive Director, Reyes-Guerra helped establish the Computing Sciences Accreditation Board (CSAB) in the mid-1980s, was principal investigator for two National Science Foundation awards, and was named an ABET Fellow in 1990.

More recently, he was the co-founder of the Pan American Academy of Engineering as well as a permanent and active contributor to the Pan American Union of Engineering Organizations (UPADI).

Donald B. Sanderson, Ph.D.



Sanderson was a recognized expert in program assessment and had been associated with ABET for many years. He began his association with ABET as a volunteer in 2004 and completed ABET's Institute for the Development of Excellence in Assessment Leadership (IDEAL)

in 2006. Sanderson was a popular presenter at the Best Assessment Processes Symposia and ABET Symposia, and recently, he had been selected to lead ABET's regional Program Assessment Workshops.

At the time of his death, Sanderson was a Professor in the Department of Computer and Information Sciences in the College of Business and Technology at East Tennessee State University (ETSU).

2010-11 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of ABET (a nonprofit organization) as of September 30, 2011, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of ABET's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. The prior year summarized comparative information has been derived from ABET's 2010 financial statements and, in our report dated February 14, 2011, we expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of ABET as of September 30, 2011, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The information in the accompanying supplementary schedule (page 33) is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Councilor Buchanan + Mitchell P.C.

Councilor, Buchanan & Mitchell, P.C. Certified Public Accountants Bethesda, Maryland

January 13, 2012

2010-11 Statement of Financial Position

September 30, 2011 (With Comparative Totals for September 30, 2010)

	2011	2010	
Assets			
Current Assets			
Cash and Cash Equivalents	\$ 6,890,634	\$ 5,619,821	
Certificates of Deposit	200,000	840,495	
Accounts Receivable, Less Allowance for Doubtful Accounts of \$83,712	719,572	614,102	
Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets	402,790	767,591	
Total Current Assets	8,212,996	7,842,009	
Property and Equipment and Intangible Assets			
Information Management Systems	705,021	705,021	
Equipment	426,713	365,931	
Furniture and Fixtures	193,946	191,937	
Computer Software	309,089	190,476	
Equipment Under Capital Lease, Before Accumulated Amortization of \$46,767	104,735	104,735	
Leasehold Improvements	152,684	95,406	
Intangible Assets	129,915	14,915	
	2,022,103	1,668,421	
Less Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization	(1,007,793)	(857,279)	
Net Property and Equipment	1,014,310	811,142	
Total Assets	\$ 9,227,306	\$ 8,653,151	

2011 2010

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current Liabilities		
Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities	\$ 655,271	\$ 1,044,897
Capital Lease Payable – Current Portion	16,908	14,440
Deferred Revenues	3,870,479	3,828,603
Total Current Liabilities	4,542,658	4,887,940
Long-Term Liabilities		
Capital Lease Payable – Net of Current Portion	49,366	66,273
Deferred Rent Payable	142,868	176,433
Total Long-Term Liabilities	192,234	242,706
Total Liabilities	4,734,892	5,130,646
Net Assets		
Unrestricted	4,461,761	3,490,962
Temporarily Restricted	30,653	31,543
Total Net Assets	4,492,414	3,522,505
Total Liabilities and Net Assets	\$ 9,227,306	\$ 8,653,151

* See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements (beginning on page 30).

2010-11 Statement of Activities

September 30, 2011 (With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended September 30, 2010)

	2011	2010	
Support and Revenues			
Accreditation Fees	\$ 6,535,840	\$ 6,270,843	
In-Kind Contributions	6,653,135	3,543,113	
Assessments – Member Societies	1,411,225	1,393,675	
Professional Service Revenues	526,197	580,645	
Science Screen Report Contributions	29,825	84,795	
Government Grants	_	4,026	
Interest Income	1,915	27,138	
Other Revenue	8,258	2,233	
Executive Meeting Revenues	1,834	1,370	
Net Assets Released from Restrictions			
Total Support and Revenues	15,168,229	11,907,838	
Expenses			
Accreditation			
Operational	2,948,212	2,851,243	
In-Kind	6,653,135	3,543,113	
Total Accreditation	9,601,347	6,394,356	
Professional Services	1,521,020	1,121,869	
Governance	800,544	861,932	
Special Projects	_	8,482	
Planning and Operations	2,275,409	1,943,357	
Total Expenses	14,198,320	10,329,996	
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets	969,909	1,577,842	
Net Assets, Beginning of Year	3,522,505	1,944,663	
Net Assets, End of Year	\$ 4,492,414	\$ 3,522,505	

* See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements (beginning on page 30).

2010-11 Statement of Cash Flows

September 30, 2011 (With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended September 30, 2010)

	2	011	2	010
Cash Flows from Operating Activities				
Increase in Net Assets	\$	969,909	\$	1,577,842
Adjustments to Reconcile Increase in Net Assets to Net Cash Provided				
by Operating Activities				
Depreciation and Amortization		195,277		143,115
Deferred Rent		(33,565)		(26,796)
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts		—		(86,233)
Loss on Disposal of Property and Equipment		—		5,640
(Increase) Decrease in Assets				
Accounts Receivable		(105,470)		(42,547)
Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets		364,801		(406,139)
Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities				
Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities		(389,626)		303,485
Deferred Revenues		41,876		859,629
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities		1,043,202		2,327,996
Cash Flows from Investing Activities				
Purchases of Property and Equipment and Intangible Assets		(398,445)		(185,241)
Maturities of Certificates of Deposit		640,495		3,419,604
Purchases of Investments				(1,232,362)
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities		242,050		2,002,001
Cash Flows from Financing Activities				
Capital Lease Payments		(14,439)		3,295
Net Increase in Cash Equivalents		1,270,813		4,333,292
Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year		5,619,821		1,286,529
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year	\$	6,890,634	\$	5,619,821
Supplementary Disclosure of Cash Flow Information	¢	10 45 4	¢	11 440
Cash raid During the year for interest	\$	12,454	\$	11,416

* See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements (beginning on page 30).

2010-11 Notes to Financial Statements

1. Organization

ABET was organized in 1932 and incorporated in 1963. ABET accredits applied science, computing, engineering, and technology programs at colleges and universities throughout the United States as well as internationally. ABET also conducts faculty improvement workshops. ABET is supported primarily by accreditation fees, contributed accreditation services, and membership assessments.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (US GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash Equivalents

ABET considers all highly-liquid investments with an initial maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are reported at their outstanding balances reduced by an allowance for doubtful accounts, if necessary.

Management periodically evaluates the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts by considering ABET's past receivables loss experience, known and inherent risks in the accounts receivable population, adverse situations that may affect a client's ability to pay, and current economic conditions. The allowance for doubtful accounts is increased by charges to bad debts expense and decreased by charge offs of the accounts receivable balances. Accounts receivable are considered past due and charged off based on management's determination that they are uncollectible.

Property and Equipment and Intangible Assets

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives of the assets on a straight-line basis ranging from three to 12 years. Acquisitions of property and equipment in excess of \$1,000 are capitalized. Amortization of equipment purchased through capital leases has been included in depreciation expense.

In 2011, ABET capitalized the costs of purchased training materials used during workshops as intangible assets. The manuals are being amortized on a straight-line basis over estimated useful lives of five years. ABET periodically reviews the carrying value of this material to determine whether impairment exists. ABET considers relevant cash flow and profitability information from the workshops in assessing whether the carrying value of material can be recovered. Amortization expense related to this intellectual property was \$17,250 during 2011.

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

During the year ended September 30, 2011, ABET received \$29,825 in contributions restricted for the Science Screen Report Program. Additionally, net assets of \$30,715 related to the Science Screen Report contributions were released from donor restrictions by satisfying the restrictions specified by the donors. Temporarily restricted net assets at September 30, 2011, were \$30,653 and were restricted to the Science Screen Report Program.

(continued)

Revenue, Support, and Expense Recognition

The financial statements of ABET have been prepared on an accrual basis. Revenue from membership assessments is recognized over the period to which the assessments relate, and revenue from fees is recognized when the related services are performed. Accreditation visit revenue is recognized when ABET releases its final reports.

Unless specifically restricted by the donor or the grantor, all contributions and grants are considered to be available for unrestricted use. Unrestricted contributions received for ABET's programs are recognized as support when received.

Income Taxes

ABET is a tax-exempt charitable organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

Uncertain Tax Positions

ABET follows the Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification (FASB ASC), which provides guidance on accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in ABET's financial statements. As of September 30, 2011, ABET had no unrecognized tax benefits related to uncertain tax positions in its tax return that would qualify for either recognition or disclosure in its financial statements.

ABET's policy would be to recognize interest and penalties on tax positions related to its unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense in the financial statements. Through September 30, 2011, there have been no matters that would have resulted in an accrual for interest and/or penalties.

Generally, the tax years before 2007 are no longer subject to examination by federal, states, or local taxing authorities.

Summarized Comparative Information

The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information in total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with ABET's financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2010, from which the summarized information was derived.

3. Concentration of Credit Risk

ABET regularly maintains cash deposits at its bank. At September 30, 2011, all of ABET's bank account deposits were fully insured. Additionally, approximately \$9,400 was invested in money market funds which were not covered by insurance. The money market funds are invested in government securities or short-term securities which are considered low risk.

4. Capital Lease Obligation

ABET is obligated under capital lease arrangements for office equipment.

The following is a summary of the minimum rental commitments of long-term leases over the remaining years:

For the Years Ending September 30,

0010	•	00 550
2012	\$	26,556
2013		26,556
2014		26,730
2015		1,975
Total Minimum Lease Payments		81,817
Less Amount Representing Interest		(15,543)
Preset Value of Minimum Lease		
Payments	\$	66,274

Interest expense for the year ended September 30, 2011, was \$12,454.

5. Change in Accounting Estimate

During 2011, ABET revised its valuation of the hourly rates for accreditation services rendered by the volunteer commissioners and program evaluators. ABET currently values the volunteer hours using rates that ABET is charged by professionals for services related to accreditation (training and commission adjuncts). Prior to 2011, ABET valued the volunteer hours using hourly rates that another accrediting organization paid its evaluators. In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, in-kind services should be recorded at the amount that would have been paid had the services been purchased. Hourly rates used have been revised to reflect what ABET, not the other accrediting organization, would have to pay its volunteers. Although the change in methodology resulted in a change in the

(continued)

estimate of the fair value of the in-kind contributions, there was no change in ABET's increase (decrease) in net assets for the year ended September 30, 2011. The revised valuation increased ABET's in-kind contribution revenue and accreditation expense by approximately \$1,800,000. The change in estimate did not affect the carrying value of assets or liabilities. As the change affects revenues and expenses equally, it also did not affect the reported contribution to reserves.

6. Contributed Services

ABET records in-kind contributions for accreditation services rendered by the volunteer commissioners and program evaluators. Contributed services are recognized at fair value if the services received (a) create or enhance long-lived assets or (b) require specialized skills, are provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation. During the year ended September 30, 2011, ABET recorded \$6,653,135 in in-kind contributions support and accreditation expense in the statement of activities.

7. Retirement Plan

ABET has a retirement plan open to all employees. Under the plan, ABET makes contributions to TIAA/CREF. Contributions to the plan are at the discretion of management each year and amounted to \$119,752 for the year ended September 30, 2011.

8. Operating Lease Obligation

ABET leases its office space under a noncancellable operating lease that expires in September 2014. The lease includes an escalation clause for rental increases every 12 months.

Future minimum rentals are as follows:

For the Years Ending September 30,

2012 2013	\$ 329,641 336,872
2014	\$ 344,267

Rental expense, which includes maintenance and utilities, amounted to \$338,809 for the year ended September 30, 2011.

9. Related Party Transactions

ABET Foundation, Inc., a not-for-profit corporation, is a related party because of common members of administrative management.

As of September 30, 2011, ABET Foundation owed ABET \$43,278 for management fees and other reimbursable costs and is included in accounts receivable.

For the year ended September 30, 2011, ABET charged ABET Foundation \$26,767 for management fees.

10. Functional Classification of Expenses

The following is the breakdown of expenses by functional classification:

Program Services		
Accreditation	\$ 12,149,767	
Professional Services	526,197	
Governance	1,492,531	
Total Program Services		\$ 14,168,495
Supporting Services		
Planning and Operations –		
Unallocable		29,825
Total Expenses		\$ 14,198,320

Professional services and planning and operations expenses in excess of associated revenues are allocated to accreditation, governance, and special projects expenses in proportion to their shares of total direct expenses for those programs.

11. Subsequent Events

ABET has evaluated subsequent events through January 13, 2012, the date on which the financial statements were available to be issued.

ABET

Schedule of Expenses Without Indirect Expense Allocation For the Year Ended September 30, 2011 (With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended September 30, 2010)

	Accreditation	Professional Services	Governance	Planning and Operations	2011 Total <u>Expenses</u>	2010 Total Expenses
Other Professional Fees	\$ 6,908,783	\$ 106,610	\$ 43,208	\$ 212,894	\$ 7,271,495	\$ 4,045,070
Salaries and Related Expenses	893,666	1,064,694	519,060	1,092,958	3,570,378	3,083,788
Volunteer Travel	1,023,515	8,939	8,217	326	1,040,997	1,019,298
Hosted Meeting Expenses	205,082	157,560	43,142	1,421	407,205	470,042
Office Expense	48,783	48,354	17,527	288,437	403,101	409,789
Commission Officer Travel	374,781	505	4,063	-	379,349	379,650
Occupancy Expense	-	-	-	338,809	338,809	355,904
Staff Travel	105,400	68,921	39,318	4,351	217,990	127,407
Insurance Expense	-	-	10,530	54,882	65,412	67,485
Board of Directors Travel Expense	157	2,010	62,835	-	65,002	97,175
Participant Travel	25,605	998	28,818	-	55,421	15,539
Bank Fees	1,666	22,170	-	29,916	53,752	53,613
Staff Development and Morale	5,988	4,321	1,741	21,176	33,226	18,754
Membership Dues - Organizations	-	8,240	10,997	10,572	29,809	15,274
Meeting Registration	3,976	6,760	7,040	595	18,371	16,524
Interest Expense	-	-	-	12,454	12,454	11,416
Advertising	-	9,935	-	(866)	9,069	10,632
Volunteer Recognition	3,560	-	3,563	_	7,123	7,295
Individual Membership Dues	349	766	485	4,877	6,477	5,290
Bad Debt Expense	-	-	-	-	-	(44,344)
Depreciation and Amortization	-	-	-	195,277	195,277	143,115
Miscellaneous Expenses	36	10,237		7,330	17,603	21,280
Total Expenses Without Indirect	\$ 0 601 3 <i>47</i>	¢ 1 521 020	¢ 900 544	6 2 275 400	¢14 100 220	£10.220.006

2011 ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

ABET could not conduct its many activities without the expertise and dedication of more than 2,000 individuals. These include a variety of volunteers from ABET's 31 member societies, industry and academic partners, and professional staff. Without their fine work, ABET could not maintain a level of excellence in accreditation that benefits students and their families, academic programs and institutions, industry and government employers, and the public at large.



2010-11 Board of Directors

ABET is a federation of 31 professional and technical societies, and the Board of Directors is its governing body. The Board consists of officers, Directors from the ABET Member Societies, and Board elected individuals unaffiliated with the disciplines that ABET accredits, who are called Public Directors. The Board's primary responsibilities are to set policies and procedures, establish the annual budget, and approve accreditation criteria.

Officers

President

Phillip E. Borrowman Hanson Professional Services, Inc.

Past President

David K. Holger Iowa State University

President-Elect

Larry A. Kaye

Secretary

Ronald Hinn PetroSkills

Treasurer

Bassem F. Armaly Missouri University of Science and Technology

Representative Directors

Public Directors

Sylvia L. Alexander Michigan Department of Transportation (Retired)

William Bevins FreemanWhite Margaret I. Keller Organizational Success

Patricia A. Ladewig Regis University

Katy E. Marre University of Dayton

AAEE – American Academy of Environmental Engineers

David A. Vaccari Stevens Institute of Technology

ACerS/NICE – The American Ceramic Society's National Institute of Ceramic Engineers

William M. Mullins U.S. Office of Naval Research

ACSM – American Congress on Surveying and Mapping

Steven D. Johnson Purdue University

AIAA – American Institute of Aeronautics and Astronautics

John E. LaGraff Syracuse University (Retired)

AIChE – American Institute of Chemical Engineers

Kirk Schulz Kansas State University

Jeffrey J. Siirola

AIHA – American Industrial Hygiene Association Robert A. Herrick

Herrick Engineering, Inc.

ANS – American Nuclear Society James S. Tulenko University of Florida

ASABE – American Society of Agricultural and Biological Engineers

Mary Leigh Wolfe Virginia Tech

ASCE – American Society of Civil Engineers

Wayne R. Bergstrom Bechtel Power Corporation

Larry J. Feeser Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute

Paul C. Taylor Metropolitan Transportation Authority

ASEE – American Society for Engineering Education

Karan Watson Texas A&M University

ASHRAE – American Society of Heating, Refrigerating, and Air-Conditioning Engineers

David B. Meredith Pennsylvania State University (Fayette Campus)

ASME

Frank A. Gourley West Virginia University Institute of Technology

Gina J. Lee-Glauser Syracuse University

Robert O. Warrington Michigan Technological University

ASSE – American Society of Safety Engineers

James Ramsay Embry-Riddle Aeronautical University

BMES – Biomedical Engineering Society

Stan A. Napper Louisiana Tech University

CSAB, Inc.

Lawrence G. Jones Software Engineering Institute Carnegie Mellon University

Murali R. Varanasi University of North Texas

Patrick J. Walsh **IBM Global Services**

IEEE

Moshe Kam **Drexel University**

Michael R. Lightner University of Colorado at Boulder

John W. Meredith

IIE - Institute of Industrial Engineers

K. Jamie Rogers The University of Texas at Arlington

Mickey R. Wilhelm University of Louisville

INCOSE – International Council on Systems Engineering

Wolter J. Fabrycky Virginia Tech

ISA – International Society of Automation

Donald R. Gillum Texas State Technical College

NCEES – National Council of Examiners for Engineering and Surveying

Monte L. Phillips University of North Dakota

NSPE – National Society of Professional Engineers

Craig N. Musselman CMA Engineers, Inc.

SAE International

Kenneth Rennels Indiana University-Purdue University Indianapolis

SFPE – Society of Fire Protection Engineers John W. McCormick

SME – Society of Manufacturing Engineers Hulas H. King

Siemens PLM Software

SME-AIME - Society for Mining, Metallurgy, and Exploration

Arden D. Davis South Dakota School of Mines & Technology

SNAME - Society of Naval Architects and Marine Engineers

Wayne L. Neu Virginia Tech

SPE - Society of Petroleum Engineers

Samuel Ameri West Virginia University

SPIE – The International Society for Optics and Photonics

Barry L. Shoop U.S. Military Academy

TMS – The Minerals, Metals, and Materials Society

Joseph F. Thomas, Jr. Wright State University

Associate Representative Directors

MRS – Materials Research Society Steven M. Yalisove University of Michigan

WEPAN – Women in Engineering **ProActive Network**

Mary Juhas The Ohio State University

2010-11 Academic Advisory Council

The Academic Advisory Council (AAC) was formed in 2010 with the overall objective to enhance communications between the ABET Board of Directors and the academic community. The council represents all four ABET commissions and currently include 16 deans, associate deans, and other academic leaders who are selected to represent a range of commissions, institutional types, geographical coverage in the United States, and other demographics.

Chair

Steven M. Cramer University of Wisconsin-Madison

Council Members

Patrick N. Breysse The Johns Hopkins University

Kendall T. Harris Prairie View A&M University

Ravi Jain University of the Pacific

Richard T. Johnson Bradley University Jerome P. Lavelle North Carolina State University

Richard G. Mathieu James Madison University

Ron McKean Ferris State University

Wiley R. McKinzie Rochester Institute of Technology

K. Arthur Overholser Vanderbilt University

Russell F. Pinizzotto Wentworth Institute of Technology

Jeffrey L. Ray Southern Polytechnic State University

Debra J. Richardson University of California, Irvine

Heikki Topi Bentley University

John C. Williams Alfred State College

2010-11 Industry Advisory Council

The Industry Advisory Council (IAC) provides the ABET Board of Directors with valuable perspectives on ABET's accreditation programs and procedures. ABET has charged the IAC to:

- Provide industry and government viewpoints on accreditation,
- Review proposed changes in ABET programs and policies, and
- Stimulate industrial firms' involvement in ABET's work.

For 2011, the IAC was comprised of 14 at-large industry members, the ABET President, the ABET President-Elect, and the ABET Executive Director.

Chair

Dwight A. Beranek

Council Members

Ray Almgren National Instruments

Craig J. Berry Siemens PLM Software

Charles R. Craig Corning, Inc. James Dalton U.S. Army Corps of Engineers

Michael B. Gwyn Benham Constructions, LLC (Past Chair)

Gina L. Hutchins United Parcel Service

Paul B. Kalafos, Jr. Northrop Grumman Corporation

Ramon Lugo, III NASA Glenn Research Center

John D. Matonich Rowe Professional Services Company

Charles H. Menke Caterpillar, Inc.

Scott C. Petrak Bayer Corporate and Business Services, LLC

Brian Ruestow F.W. Roberts Manufacturing Co., Inc.

Ray Steen General Dynamics Armament and Technical Products

2010-11 Global Council

The Global Council formulates and recommends policies and procedures regarding ABET's global activities to the Board of Directors for approval. These include participation in Mutual Recognition Agreements (MRAs), Memoranda of Understanding (MOUs), and Substantial Equivalency recognition of educational programs outside of the U.S.

Chair

John E. LaGraff Syracuse University (Retired)

Council Members

Samuel Ameri West Virginia University

Henry R. Bauer, III University of Wyoming

Dwight A. Beranek

Wayne R. Bergstrom Bechtel Power Corporation

William Bevins FreemanWhite Wolter J. Fabrycky Virginia Tech

Donald R. Gillum Texas State Technical College

Margaret I. Keller Organizational Success

Charles H. Menke Caterpillar, Inc.

Monte L. Phillips University of North Dakota

James Ramsay Embry-Riddle Aeronautical University

Kirk Schulz Kansas State University

Barry L. Shoop U.S. Military Academy

Robert O. Warrington Michigan Technological University

Stuart H. Zweben The Ohio State University

2010-11 Accreditation Council

The Accreditation Council formulates and recommends policies and procedures regarding the ABET accreditation processes to ABET leadership. Particular emphasis is placed upon process improvement and process uniformity across the commissions.

Chair

Stuart H. Zweben The Ohio State University

Applied Science Accreditation Commission

Chair

John J. Segna American Society of Civil Engineers (ASCE)

Chair-Elect

Bret M. Clausen CH2M HII Constructors

Past Chair

Charles W. McGlothlin, Jr. Oakland University

Computing Accreditation Commission

Chair Allen Parrish University of Alabama, Tuscaloosa

Chair-Elect Harold Grossman Clemson University

Past Chair

David P. Kelly Bluefin Robotics

Engineering Accreditation Commission

Chair

Peter J. Carrato Bechtel Corporation

Chair-Elect

Susan E. Conry Clarkson University

Past Chair

Douglas R. Bowman Lockheed Martin

Technology Accreditation Commission

Chair

Warren R. Hill Weber State University

Chair-Elect

Carol Richardson Rochester Institute of Technology

Past Chair

Kevin D. Taylor Purdue University

Global Council

Chair

John E. LaGraff Syracuse University (Retired)

2010-11 Applied Science Accreditation Commission

Officers

Chair John J. Segna American Society of Civil Engineers (ASCE)

Chair-Elect

Bret M. Clausen CH2M Hill Constructors

Past Chair

Charles W. McGlothlin, Jr. Oakland University

Vice Chair-Operations

Christopher A. Janicak Indiana University of Pennsylvania

Members-at-Large

Rita Marie Lumos

George R. Osborne McCart Group

Venkitaswamy Raju VIT University Public Commissioner Linda Biemer

Board Liaison Representative James S. Tulenko University of Florida

Commission Members

AAEE – American Academy of Environmental Engineers

Neil Hutzler Michigan Technological University

ACSM – American Congress on Surveying and Mapping

Steve M. Frank New Mexico State University

Khagendra Thapa Ferris State University

AIHA – American Industrial Hygiene Association

J. Torey Nalbone The University of Texas at Tyler

Neil J. Zimmerman Purdue University

ASCE – American Society of Civil Engineers

Paul K. Male Hudson Valley Community College

ASSE – American Society of Safety Engineers

Hamid Fonooni East Carolina University

Robert D. Soule Indiana University of Pennsylvania

HPS – Health Physics Society

Mark Rudin Boise State University

NCEES – National Council of Examiners for Engineering and Surveying Peter J. Hutchison

SME – Society of Manufacturing Engineers

Andy Drake Weber State University

2010-11 Computing Accreditation Commission

Officers

Chair Allen Parrish University of Alabama, Tuscaloosa

Chair-Elect Harold Grossman Clemson University

Past Chair David P. Kelly Bluefin Robotics

Vice Chair-Operations Barbara Price Georgia Southern University

Members-at-Large

David W. Cordes University of Alabama

Lois Mansfield Raytheon Company

James A. Smith NASA Goddard Space Flight Center

Judith L. Solano University of North Florida

Stan Thomas Wake Forest University

Public Commissioner David E. Herrington

Board Liaison Representative

Kenneth Rennels Indiana University-Purdue University Indianapolis

Commission Members

CSAB, Inc.

James H. Aylor University of Virginia

Curtis A. Carver University System of Georgia

David A. Cook Stephen F. Austin State University

Roy J. Daigle University of South Alabama

Venu G. Dasigi Southern Polytechnic State University

William J. Dixon Ernst and Young, LLP

Barbara Doyle Jacksonville University

Ronald P. Doyle IBM Corporation

Dick Gayler Kennesaw State University

David S. Gibson U.S. Air Force Academy

Teofilo F. Gonzalez University of California, Santa Barbara

C. Richard G. Helps Brigham Young University

Thomas B. Horton University of Virginia

Stephen M. Jodis St. Vincent College

Elva J. Jones Winston-Salem State University

Nancy Kinnersley University of Kansas Kadathur B. Lakshmanan Concordia University, Montreal, Canada

Cary Laxer Rose-Hulman Institute of Technology

Paul M. Leidig Grand Valley State University

Jim Leone Rochester Institute of Technology

Timothy E. Lindquist Arizona State University Polytechnic

Andrea Lobo Rowan University

Keith B. Olson Utah Valley State University

Michael Oudshoorn Montclair State University

Lorraine Parker Virginia Commonwealth University

Anne-Louise Radimsky California State University, Sacramento

Srinivasan Ramaswamy ABB Corporate Research Center

Donna Reese Mississippi State University

Han Reichgelt Southern Polytechnic State University

Harry L. Reif James Madison University

Steve Roach The University of Texas at El Paso

John L. Schnase NASA Goddard Space Flight Center Dennis "Dino" Schweitzer U.S. Air Force Academy

Stephen B. Seidman Texas State University-San Marcos

Stephanie Smullen University of Tennessee-Chattanooga

Edward Sobiesk U.S. Military Academy Neelam Soundarajan Ohio State University

Kim W. Tracy Northeastern Illinois University

John C. Turchek Robert Morris University

Mudasser F. Wyne National University

2010-11 Engineering Accreditation Commission

Officers

Chair Peter J. Carrato Bechtel Corporation

Chair-Elect Susan E. Conry Clarkson University

Past Chair

Douglas R. Bowman Lockheed Martin

Vice Chair-Operations

David B. Beasley Arkansas State University

Members-at-Large

Richard L. Brandon Premier, Inc.

Winston F. Erevelles St. Mary's University

Elizabeth A. Judson University Industry Demonstration Partnership

John H. Koon John H. Koon & Associates

Muthusamy Krishnamurthy Hydro Modeling, Inc.

Sarah A. Rajala Mississippi State University

David R. Thompson Oklahoma State University

Patrick B. Usoro General Motors Research and Development Center

William J. Wepfer Georgia Institute of Technology

Public Commissioner

Herbert H. Richtol National Science Foundation (NSF)

Board Liaison Representative

Stan A. Napper Louisiana Tech University

Commission Members

AAEE – American Academy

of Environmental Engineers Paul L. Bishop National Science Foundation (NSF)

Stephen P. Graef Stephen P. Graef, LLC

ACerS/NICE – The American Ceramic Society's National

Institute of Ceramic Engineers William F. Hammetter Sandia National Laboratories

ACSM – American Congress on Surveying and Mapping

Joseph V. Paiva

AIAA – American Institute of Aeronautics and Astronautics

Brett L. Anderson The Boeing Company

David S. Dolling The University of Texas at Austin

AIChE – American Institute of Chemical Engineers

Laura Dietsche Dow Chemical Company

Thomas R. Hanley Auburn University

Joseph A. Shaeiwitz West Virginia University ANS – American Nuclear Society Stanley H. Levinson

AREVA NP, Inc.

ASABE – American Society of Agricultural and Biological Engineers

Ann L. Kenimer Texas A&M University

Donald C. Slack University of Arizona

ASCE – American Society of Civil Engineers

David Binning AEM Corporation

William L. Coulbourne URS Corporation

Robert P. Elliott University of Arkansas

Muthusamy Krishnamurthy Hydro Modeling, Inc.

Richard W. Lyles Michigan State University

ASEE – American Society

for Engineering Education

Joan P. Gosink Colorado School of Mines

Raman M. Unnikrishnan California State University, Fullerton

ASHRAE – American Society of Heating, Refrigerating, and Air-Conditioning Engineers

Robert R. Bittle Texas Christian University

ASME

M. Patricia Brackin Rose-Hulman Institute of Technology

Eugene F. Brown Virginia Tech

Lawrence M. Butkus U.S. Air Force (Air Force Research Laboratory, Wright-Patterson AFB)

Mohammad M. Dehghani The Johns Hopkins University

Mohammad H. Hosni Kansas State University

Darrell W. Pepper University of Nevada-Las Vegas

BMES – Biomedical Engineering Society

Paul J. Benkeser Georgia Institute of Technology

Deborah S. Wells PetroAlgae, LLC

CSAB, Inc.

Donald J. Bagert Southeast Missouri State University

IEEE

Curtis W. Dodd Lanier, Ford, Shaver & Payne, PC

Joanne B. Dugan University of Virginia

Joseph L.A. Hughes Georgia Institute of Technology

Thomas H. Kuckertz Prince William Sound Regional Citizens' Advisory Council W. Vance McCollough Raytheon Company

Franc E. Noel

John A. Orr Worcester Polytechnic Institute

Diane T. Rover Iowa State University

John L. Vian The Boeing Company

IIE – Institute of Industrial Engineers

Catherine C. Dunn Port of New Orleans

Jessica O. Matson Tennessee Technological University

R. Allen Miller The Ohio State University

NCEES – National Council of Examiners for Engineering and Surveying

James T. McCarter H2L Consulting Engineers

NSPE – National Society of Professional Engineers

Thomas K. Jewell Union College

SAE International

Charles L. Proctor Proctor Engineering Research & Consulting, Inc.

SME – Society of Manufacturing Engineers

Ronald J. Bennett University of St. Thomas

Dianne Chong The Boeing Company

SME-AIME – Society for Mining, Metallurgy, and Exploration

Jeffrey R. Keaton MACTEC

Richard J. Sweigard University of Kentucky

SNAME – Society of Naval

Architects and Marine Engineers Michael Fleahman URS Corporation

SPE – Society of Petroleum Engineers

Kashy Aminian West Virginia University

TMS – The Minerals, Metals,

and Materials Society Gillian M. Bond New Mexico Institute of Mining and Technology

Jeffrey W. Fergus Auburn University

2010-11 Technology Accreditation Commission

Officers

Chair Warren R. Hill Weber State University

Chair-Elect

Carol Richardson Rochester Institute of Technology

Past Chair

Kevin D. Taylor Purdue University

Vice Chair-Operations

Amitabha Bandyopadhyay State University of New York at Farmingdale

Members-at-Large

Wilson T. Gautreaux Rayonier Performance Fibers

John J. Sammarco NIOSH

Steven E. Wendel Sinclair Community College

Timothy W. Zeigler Southern Polytechnic State University

Public Commissioner Barbara Martin

Board Liaison Representative

David A. Vaccari Stevens Institute of Technology

Commission Members

AAEE – American Academy of Environmental Engineers Otis J. Sproul University of New Hampshire

ACSM – American Congress on Surveying and Mapping David L. Ingram Ingram-Hagen & Co., PLC.

AIAA – American Institute of Aeronautics and Astronautics

Thomas R. Gagnier TRG Professional Consulting, Inc.

AIChE – American Institute of Chemical Engineers

Carol E. Schulte McNeese State University

ANS – American Nuclear Society Kent W. Hamlin KWH Associates, LLC

ASCE – American Society of Civil Engineers

Nirmal K. Das Georgia Southern University

Subal K. Sarkar Wang Engineering

Albert C. Wahle Sinclair Community College

ASEE – American Society for Engineering Education

Bahman S. Motlagh Daytona State College

John A. Stratton Rochester Institute of Technology ASHRAE – American Society of Heating, Refrigerating, and Air-Conditioning Engineers

Larraine A. Kapka Sinclair Community College

ASME

Christine L. Corum Purdue University at West Lafayette

Mark Coté Maine Maritime Academy

Scott Danielson Arizona State University Polytechnic

BMES – Biomedical Engineering Society

Ronald H. Rockland New Jersey Institute of Technology

CSAB, Inc.

Frank H. Young Rose-Hulman Institute of Technology

IEEE

Richard Cliver Eastman Kodak

Scott C. Dunning University of Maine

Adrienne M. Hendrickson University of Virginia

Larry D. Hoffman Purdue University at West Lafayette

James A. Lookadoo Pittsburg State University

Martin A. Reed IBM Corporation

Timothy L. Skvarenina Purdue University at West Lafayette

IIE – Institute of Industrial Engineers

Patrick Patterson Texas Tech University

NSPE – National Society of Professional Engineers

C. Wayne Unsell Bowling Green State University

SAE International

Daniel E. Skurski National Trappers Association

SME – Society of Manufacturing Engineers

Niaz Latif Purdue University Calumet

Jorge Leon Texas A&M University

SNAME – Society of Naval Architects and Marine Engineers

Paul C. Jackson Marine Design Dynamics, Inc.

2010-11 Team Chairs

Team chairs have demonstrated technical competency and applied knowledge of accreditation criteria, policies, and procedures. They are experienced program evaluators who lead reviews and interact with the institutional representatives. We owe a debt of gratitude for their dedication and service to ABET and their professions.

The following individuals served as team chairs for at least one evaluation visit during the 2010-11 accreditation cycle.

Kashy Aminian West Virginia University

Brett L. Anderson The Boeing Company

James H. Aylor University of Virginia

Gordon L. "Don" Bailes East Tennessee State University

Swaminathan Balachandran University of Wisconsin-Platteville

Amitabha Bandyopadhyay State University of New York at Farmingdale

Henry R. Bauer, III University of Wyoming

David B. Beasley Arkansas State University

Paul J. Benkeser Georgia Institute of Technology

Ronald J. Bennett University of St. Thomas

David Binning AEM Corporation

Paul L. Bishop National Science Foundation (NSF) Robert R. Bittle Texas Christian University

Gillian M. Bond New Mexico Institute of Mining and Technology

Della T. Bonnette University of Louisiana at Lafayette

Douglas R. Bowman Lockheed Martin

M. Patricia Brackin Rose-Hulman Institute of Technology

Richard L. Brandon Premier, Inc.

Eugene F. Brown Virginia Tech

Lawrence M. Butkus U.S. Air Force (Air Force Research Laboratory, Wright-Patterson AFB)

Curtis A. Carver University System of Georgia

Dianne Chong The Boeing Company

Bret M. Clausen CH2M HII Constructors

Richard Cliver Eastman Kodak

Susan E. Conry Clarkson University

David A. Cook Stephen F. Austin State University

David W. Cordes University of Alabama

Christine L. Corum Purdue University at West Lafayette

Mark Coté Maine Maritime Academy

William L. Coulbourne URS Corporation Scott Danielson Arizona State University Polytechnic

Nirmal K. Das Georgia Southern University

Venu G. Dasigi Southern Polytechnic State University

Mohammad M. Dehghani The Johns Hopkins University

Laura Dietsche Dow Chemical Company

Curtis W. Dodd Lanier, Ford, Shaver & Payne PC

David S. Dolling The University of Texas at Austin

Barbara Doyle Jacksonville University

Andy Drake Weber State University

Joanne B. Dugan University of Virginia

Catherine C. Dunn Port of New Orleans

Scott C. Dunning University of Maine

Robert P. Elliott University of Arkansas

Winston F. Erevelles St. Mary's University

Jeffrey W. Fergus Auburn University

Michael Fleahman URS Corporation

Hamid Fonooni East Carolina University

Steve M. Frank New Mexico State University

Thomas R. Gagnier TRG Professional Consulting, Inc. Wilson T. Gautreaux Rayonier Performance Fibers

Dick Gayler Kennesaw State University

David S. Gibson U.S. Air Force Academy

Teofilo F. Gonzalez University of California at Santa Barbara

Joan P. Gosink Colorado School of Mines

Stephen P. Graef Stephen P. Graef, LLC

Harold Grossman Clemson University

William F. Hammetter Sandia National Laboratories

Chia Y. Han University of Cincinnati

Thomas R. Hanley Auburn University

C. Richard G. Helps Brigham Young University

Larry D. Hoffman Purdue University at West Lafayette

Thomas B. Horton University of Virginia

Mohammad H. Hosni Kansas State University

Ben M. Huey Arizona State University

Joseph L.A. Hughes Georgia Institute of Technology

Neil Hutzler Michigan Technological University

David L. Ingram Ingram-Hagen & Co., PLC.

Paul C. Jackson Marine Design Dynamics, Inc.

Christopher A. Janicak Indiana University of Pennsylvania Thomas K. Jewell Union College

Stephen M. Jodis St. Vincent College

Elva J. Jones Winston-Salem State University

Larraine A. Kapka Sinclair Community College

Swami N. Karunamoorthy Saint Louis University

Jeffrey R. Keaton MACTEC

Ann L. Kenimer Texas A&M University

Nancy Kinnersley University of Kansas

John H. Koon John H. Koon & Associates

Muthusamy Krishnamurthy Hydro Modeling, Inc.

Thomas H. Kuckertz Prince William Sound Regional Citizens' Advisory Council

Kadathur B. Lakshmanan Concordia University, Montreal, Canada

Cary Laxer Rose-Hulman Institute of Technology

Paul M. Leidig Grand Valley State University

Jorge Leon Texas A&M University

Jim Leone Rochester Institute of Technology

Stanley H. Levinson AREVA NP, Inc.

Timothy E. Lindquist Arizona State University Polytechnic

Andrea Lobo Rowan University James A. Lookadoo Pittsburg State University

Richard W. Lyles Michigan State University

Paul K. Male Hudson Valley Community College

Lois Mansfield Raytheon Company

Kenneth E. Martin University of North Florida

Jessica O. Matson Tennessee Technological University

James T. McCarter H2L Consulting Engineers

W. Vance McCollough Raytheon Company

Charles W. McGlothlin, Jr. Oakland University

R. Allen Miller The Ohio State University

Bahman S. Motlagh Daytona State College

J. Torey Nalbone The University of Texas at Tyler

Franc E. Noel

Keith B. Olson Utah Valley State University

John A. Orr Worcester Polytechnic Institute

George R. Osborne McCart Group

Michael Oudshoorn Montclair State University

Joseph V. Paiva

Lorraine Parker Virginia Commonwealth University

Patrick Patterson Texas Tech University

Darrell W. Pepper University of Nevada-Las Vegas Barbara Price Georgia Southern University

Charles L. Proctor Proctor Engineering Research & Consulting, Inc.

Anne-Louise Radimsky California State University, Sacramento

Sarah A. Rajala Mississippi State University

Venkitaswamy Raju VIT University

Srinivasan Ramaswamy ABB Corporate Research Center

Martin A. Reed IBM Corporation

Donna Reese Mississippi State University

Han Reichgelt Southern Polytechnic State University

Harry L. Reif James Madison University

Carol Richardson Rochester Institute of Technology

Steve Roach The University of Texas at El Paso

Ronald H. Rockland New Jersey Institute of Technology

Diane T. Rover Iowa State University

Mark Rudin Boise State University

John J. Sammarco NIOSH

Subal K. Sarkar Wang Engineering

John L. Schnase NASA Goddard Space Flight Center Carol E. Schulte McNeese State University

Kay G. Schulze U.S. Naval Academy

Dennis "Dino" Schweitzer U.S. Air Force Academy

Stephen B. Seidman Texas State University-San Marcos

Joseph A. Shaeiwitz West Virginia University

Timothy L. Skvarenina Purdue University at West Lafayette

Donald C. Slack University of Arizona

James A. Smith NASA Goddard Space Flight Center

Stephanie Smullen University of Tennessee-Chattanooga

Edward Sobiesk U.S. Military Academy

Judith L. Solano University of North Florida

David L. Soldan Kansas State University

Robert D. Soule Indiana University of Pennsylvania

Neelam Soundarajan The Ohio State University

Otis J. Sproul University of New Hampshire

John A. Stratton Rochester Institute of Technology

Richard J. Sweigard University of Kentucky

Kevin D. Taylor Purdue University

Stan Thomas Wake Forest University David R. Thompson Oklahoma State University

Kim W. Tracy Northeastern Illinois University

Nick Tredennick Gilder Publishing

John C. Turchek Robert Morris University

A. Joseph Turner, Jr. Clemson University

Raman M. Unnikrishnan California State University, Fullerton

C. Wayne Unsell Bowling Green State University

Patrick B. Usoro General Motors Research and Development Center

John L. Vian The Boeing Company

Albert C. Wahle Sinclair Community College

Richard C. Warder, Jr. The University of Memphis

Deborah S. Wells PetroAlgae, LLC

Steven E. Wendel Sinclair Community College

William J. Wepfer Georgia Institute of Technology

Carl R. Williams The University of Memphis

Mudasser F. Wyne National University

Gayle J. Yaverbaum Pennsylvania State University

Frank H. Young Rose-Hulman Institute of Technology

Timothy W. Zeigler Southern Polytechnic State University

2010-11 Program Evaluators

Program evaluators are the backbone of the ABET accreditation process. They visit institutions and review the programs seeking accreditation. To become a program evaluator, an individual must meet certain qualifications, such as possession of a degree appropriate to the field, demonstrated interest in improving education, and membership in at least one of the ABET Member Societies, to name but a few. Once accepted as a program evaluator, these individuals must undergo an extensive online and in-person training process before they are assigned to visit institutions worldwide.

We owe our program evaluators a debt of gratitude for their dedication and service to their professions.

The following individuals served as program evaluators for at least one evaluation visit during the 2010-11 accreditation cycle.

AAEE – American Academy of Environmental Engineers

Mark P. Cal New Mexico Tech

David A. Chin University of Miami

Larry A. Esvelt Esvelt Environmental Engineering

Seward G. Gilbert, Jr. Engineering Perfection, PLLC

Jeffrey H. Greenfield South Florida Water Management District

James R. Hunt University of California

Joseph F. Malina, Jr. The University of Texas at Austin Prahlad N. Murthy Wilkes University

Ronald D. Neufeld

Debra R. Reinhart University of Central Florida

F.M. Saunders Georgia Institute of Technology

Otis J. Sproul University of New Hampshire

Thomas C. Timmes U.S. Military Academy

Dennis D. Truax Mississippi State University

ACSM – American Congress on Surveying and Mapping

Earl F. Burkholder Global COGO, Inc.

David W. Gibson University of Florida

Ralph W. Goodson Bearlodge Ltd., Inc.

Peter J. Hutchison

Peter M. Jorgensen State of Wyoming

Jason G. Racette Central Connecticut State University

Julian Rouch University of Arkansas, Little Rock

Jack A. Walker Oregon Institute of Technology

AIAA – American Institute of Aeronautics and Astronautics

Erian Armanios The University of Texas at Arlington

Douglas N. Barlow U.S. Air Force Academy Aaron R. Byerley U.S. Air Force Academy

Jeffrey M. Forbes University of Colorado

Wallace T. Fowler The University of Texas at Austin

William Garrard University of Minnesota

Thomas L. Thompson Department of the Army

Angela Trego Varian Medical Systems

Valana L. Wells Arizona State University

AIChE – American Institute of Chemical Engineers

Said M. Abubakr Western Michigan University

Jale F. Akyurtlu Hampton University

Barbara M. Alexander Bayer/LANXESS/INEOS-ABS

Sue Ann B. Allen Georgia Institute of Technology

William C. Breneman

Janet M. Callahan Boise State University

David T. Camp

Ronald P. Danner Pennsylvania State University

Joshua S. Dranoff Northwestern University

John G. Ekerdt The University of Texas at Austin

Bill B. Elmore Mississippi State University Gary L. Foutch Oklahoma State University

Wilson T. Gautreaux Rayonier Performance Fibers

Roland H. Heck University of Delaware

Gabor Kiss ExxonMobil Research & Engineering Co.

Steven LeBlanc University of Toledo

Randy S. Lewis Brigham Young University

Alon V. McCormick University of Minnesota

Marina Miletic

Lueny Morell Hewlett-Packard Laboratories

Bruce E. Poling The University of Toledo

Francis J. Schork Georgia Institute of Technology

Gary M. Scott State University of New York College of Environmental Science and Forestry

Warren D. Seider University of Pennsylvania

Javad Tavakoli Lafayette College

Eileen Webb Streamline Consulting

Wallace B. Whiting University of Nevada-Reno

AIHA – American Industrial Hygiene Association

Magdy Akladios University of Houston-Clear Lake

Alice Greife University of Central Missouri William A. Groves Pennsylvania State University

Randal J. Keller Murray State University

George R. Osborne McCart Group

Hernando R. Perez Drexel University

William Popendorf Utah State University

Peter A. Scheff University of Illinois at Chicago

Barkev Siroonian Siroonian Associates

Lawrence W. Whitehead The University of Texas Health Science Center at Houston

John N. Zey Central Missouri State University

ANS – American Nuclear Society

Gilbert J. Brown University of Massachusetts Lowell

Mary Lou Dunzik-Gougar Idaho State University

Michael A. Robinson Bettis Atomic Power Laboratory

Matthew W. Sunseri TXU Energy

ASABE – American Society of Agricultural and Biological Engineers

Michael F. Brugger North Point Engineering

Benali Burgoa California Polytechnic State University

Larry D. Gaultney E.I. Dupont de Nemours & Co.

Michael C. Hirschi University of Illinois Sonia M. Jacobsen USDA Natural Resources Conservation Service

Van C. Kelley South Dakota State University

Peter A. Livingston Bosque Engineering

Muluneh Yitayew

Ronald Yoder University of Nebraska-Lincoln

ASCE – American Society of Civil Engineers

Daryl R. Armentrout Tennessee Valley Authority

Terry E. Baxter Northern Arizona University

Bruce W. Berdanier South Dakota State University

Michael S. Bronzini George Mason University

Ciro Capano Capano and Parker Engineers, P.C.

Lizette Chevalier Southern Illinois University at Carbondale

David A. Chin University of Miami

Ricky C. Clifft Arkansas State University

Elliot Colchamiro New York City College of Technology of the City University of New York

Sonya Cooper New Mexico State University

Norman D. Dennis University of Arkansas

David P. Devine Commonwealth Engineers

Keith S. Dunbar K.S. Dunbar & Associates, Inc. William H. Espey, Jr. Espey Consultants, Inc.

Allen C. Estes California Polytechnic State University

Larry A. Esvelt Esvelt Environmental Engineering

Lorraine Fleming Howard University

Maury Fortney MEFI Engineering

Sanjiv B. Gokhale Vanderbilt University

Michael J. Hagenberger Valparaiso University

Terry D. Hand U.S. Military Academy

Frank Hart Bluefield State College

William H. Highter University of Massachusetts Amherst

Ralph J. Hodek Michigan Technological University

David W. Hubly University of Colorado at Denver

E.S. Huff Portland Community College

Thomas K. Jewell Union College

Edward H. Kalajian Florida Institute of Technology

Sylvester A. Kalevela Colorado State University-Pueblo

Nathan M. Kathir U.S. Army Corps of Engineers

B.K. Lall

Debra Larson California Polytechnic State University

Martin E. Lipinski The University of Memphis

Douglas M. Mace Mace Consulting Services, Inc. John J. McDonough University of Maine

Karl F. Meyer U.S. Military Academy

Thomas E. Mulinazzi University of Kansas

Maher M. Murad University of Pittsburgh at Johnstown

James M. Nau North Carolina State University at Raleigh

Carlos A. Ortiz Southern Polytechnic State University

David V. Owsley Larkin Group NM, Inc.

Daniel Pradel University of California, Los Angeles

Thomas B. Quimby University of Alaska Anchorage

Herbert M. Raybourn Reedy Creek Improvement District

Camilla M. Saviz University of the Pacific

Thomas C. Sheahan Northeastern University

Stephen P. Shelton Dowbiggin Partners, LLC

Donald C. Slack University of Arizona

J.P. Smith

Roger E. Smith Texas A&M University

Roger E. Snyder NNSA / Los Alamos Site Office

Ellen W. Stevens Oklahoma State University

Ben J. Stuart Ohio University

Kamal S. Tawfiq Florida A&M University-Florida State University (FAMU-FSU) Paul J. Tikalsky University of Utah

Dennis D. Truax Mississippi State University

Christian O. Unanwa California Department of Transportation

Clarence E. Waters University of Nebraska-Lincoln

Joel D. Welch Greenville Technical College

John A. Wiggins New Jersey Institute of Technology

ASEE – American Society for Engineering Education

Aram Agajanian DeVry University, Chicago

W.D. Baker Rochester Institute of Technology

Walter Boles Middle Tennessee State University

Walter W. Buchanan Texas A&M University

Hector R. Carrasco Colorado State University-Pueblo

George D. Catalano U.S. Military Academy

Stephen H. Cobb Murray State University

Thomas F. Conry Ruhl Forensic, Inc.

Frank M. Croft The Ohio State University

Gayle Ermer Calvin College

Joel Falk University of Pittsburgh

Jane Fraser Colorado State University-Pueblo

Ray M. Haynes DaVinci Charter High School

2011 ABET ANNUAL REPORT

Sharon A. Jones University of Portland

Laura W. Lackey Mercer University

Kevin L. Moore Colorado School of Mines

Mark Nowack Schafer Corporation

Frederick L. Orthlieb Swarthmore College

David K. Probst Southeast Missouri State University

Teri Reed-Rhoads Purdue University

Chell Roberts Arizona State University Polytechnic

James R. Rowland University of Kansas

James R. Sherrard Three Rivers Community College

Kenneth Stier Illinois State University

Lisa A. Zidek Florida Gulf Coast University

ASHRAE – American Society of Heating, Refrigerating, and Air-Conditioning Engineers

Filza H. Walters Lawrence Technological University

Mansour Zenouzi Wentworth Institute of Technology

ASME Mahesh C. Aggarwal Gannon University

Mehdi Ahmadian Virginia Tech

Albert A. Arthur University of Cincinnati

Sally Bahowick Lawrence Livermore National Laboratory Kenneth S. Ball Virginia Tech

Donald E. Beasley Clemson University

Rebecca M. Brannon University of Utah

Tim L. Brower University of Colorado-Boulder

Cordelia K. Chandler AREVA NP, Inc.

Scott A. Clary Lockheed Martin

Jonathan S. Colton Georgia Institute of Technology

Robert J. Comparin Emerson Climate Technologies

Melvin R. Corley Louisiana Tech University

William J. Craft North Carolina A&T State University

Raju S. Dandu Kansas State University at Salina

Janak Dave University of Cincinnati

Charles G. Drake Ferris State University

Ashley Emery University of Washington

Bakhtier Farouk Drexel University

Bob Faust Colorado Quality Consultants, Inc.

Cary A. Fisher U.S. Air Force Academy

Linda Franzoni Duke University

Joseph Fuehne Purdue University at Columbus/SE Indiana

Karen Fujikawa Westinghouse Electric, LLC Lynnane E. George Colorado Technical University

Edwin A. Harvego Idaho National Laboratory

Mohamed Samir Hefzy The University of Toledo

John I. Hochstein The University of Memphis

Mohammad Hossain York Technical College

William J. Hutzel Purdue University at West Lafayette

Diane M. Jakobs Rheem Manufacturing Co.

David H. Johnson Pennsylvania State University, The Behrend College

Imin Kao Stony Brook University

Larraine A. Kapka Sinclair Community College

Amir Karimi The University of Texas at San Antonio

Mary Kasarda Virginia Tech

Gregory J. Kowalski Northeastern University

Timothy W. Lancey California State University, Fullerton

William C. Lasher Pennsylvania State University, The Behrend College

Cesar Levy

Thomas F. Lukach The University of Akron

Annette M. Lynch Woodward Governor Company

Stacy T. Malecki UTC Pratt & Whitney

Robert A. Merrill Rochester Institute of Technology Donna J. Michalek University of Mount Union

Michele Miller Michigan Technological University

Shane A. Moeykens ANSYS, Inc.

Kenneth D. Moore GE Energy

Andrew J. Moskalik National Vehicle and Fuel Emissions Lab

V. Dakshina Murty University of Portland

Joseph C. Musto Milwaukee School of Engineering

Arnoldo Muyshondt Sandia National Laboratories

David A. Nelson University of South Alabama

Dennis O'Neal Texas A&M University

Bipin Pai Purdue University Calumet

Robert W. Pitz Vanderbilt University

Jay Raja University of North Carolina at Charlotte

James W. Ramsey University of Minnesota-Twin Cities

T.S. Ravigururajan Wichita State University

Joseph J. Rencis University of Arkansas

Morteza Sadat-Hossieny Northern Kentucky University

Chittaranjan Sahay University of Hartford

Jerry Samples University of Pittsburgh at Johnstown Muthukrishnan Sathyamoorthy The University of Texas at Tyler

James R. Sherrard Three Rivers Community College

Rickey J. Shyne NASA Glenn Research Center

Ronald Smelser University of North Carolina at Charlotte

Sriram Somasundaram Pacific Northwest National Laboratory

Craig W. Somerton Michigan State University

Lynn M. Stohlgren

Tim Thomas Pittsburg State University

Jerry I. Tustaniwskyj University of California, San Diego

Curtis M. Vickery Cameron Compression Systems

Michael Ward California State University, Chico

Richard C. Warder, Jr. The University of Memphis

Wayne E. Whiteman Georgia Institute of Technology

Ahmet S. Yigit Kuwait University

Garry G. Young Entergy Nuclear

Mohamed Y. "Mo" Zarrugh James Madison University

ASSE – American Society of Safety Engineers

James D. Brown Oklahoma State University

Wayne C. Christensen Christensen Consulting for Safety Excellence, Ltd. Hamid Fonooni East Carolina University

Thomas W. Lawrence RRS/Schirmer

BMES – Biomedical Engineering Society

Gail D. Baura Keck Graduate Institute of Applied Life Sciences

Susan M. Blanchard Florida Gulf Coast University

Wm. Hugh Blanton East Tennessee State University

Krishnan B. Chandran University of Iowa

Richard J. Daken Rimkus Consulting Group

John D. Gassert Milwaukee School of Engineering

Eric J. Guilbeau Louisiana Tech University

Paul N. Hale Louisiana Tech University

Myron Hartman Pennsylvania State University, New Kensington Campus, Commonwealth College

Peter G. Katona George Mason University

Benjamin S. Kelley Baylor University

Paul H. King Vanderbilt University

Noshir A. Langrana Rutgers, The State University of New Jersey

Carol A. Mullenax Wyle

George J. Serafin Deloitte & Touche, LLP John W. Steadman University of South Alabama

James D. Sweeney Florida Gulf Coast University

Donna-Bea Tillman Microsoft Health Solutions Group

CSAB, Inc.

Shakil Akhtar Clayton State University

Tom Altman University of Colorado at Denver

Magdy Bayoumi University of Louisiana at Lafayette

Jean R. Blair U.S. Military Academy

Andrew S. Borchers Lipscomb University

David Bover Western Washington University

Pearl W. Brazier The University of Texas-Pan American

Irene E. Bruno George Mason University

Rob Byrd Abilene Christian University

James A. Cercone West Virginia Council for Community & Technical College Education

Kai H. Chang Auburn University

Sutap Chatterjee Verizon

Chia-Chu Chiang ASG Company

Stewart Crawford BioGraphix, LLC & Visible Productions, LLC

Subhasish Dasgupta The George Washington University

Venu G. Dasigi Southern Polytechnic State University Brahma Dathan Metropolitan State University

Geoffrey Dick North Georgia College and State University

Charles Dierbach Towson University

Anthony J. Duben Stephen F. Austin State University

Deborah L. Dunn Stephen F. Austin State University

Larry A. Dunning Bowling Green State University

Nancy S. Eickelmann GSA FAS

Joseph J. Ekstrom Brigham Young University

Dick Fairley Colorado Technical University

Leonard W. Fisk Parental Options, Inc.

Dennis J. Frailey Southern Methodist University

Janos T. Fustos Metropolitan State College of Denver

Mary J. Granger The George Washington University

Haidar M. Harmanani Lebanese American University

George C. Harrison Norfolk State University

Ronald L. Hartung Franklin University

Susan Haynes Eastern Michigan University

Thomas B. Hilburn Embry-Riddle Aeronautical University

Iraj Hirmanpour Consort Systems

Craig Holcomb National Security Agency Chenyi Hu University of Central Arkansas

Kevin Huggins U.S. Military Academy

Gurdeep Hura University of Maryland Eastern Shore

Deborah J. Hwang University of Evansville

John Impagliazzo

Stephen Y. Itoga University of Hawaii at Manoa

James Ivers Software Engineering Institute

David J. John Wake Forest University

Kam Fui Lau Armstrong Atlantic State University

Ronald J. Leach Howard University

Noel LeJeune Metropolitan State College of Denver

Grace A. Lewis Software Engineering Institute, Carnegie Mellon University

Tracy L. Lewis Radford University

Yashwant K. Malaiya Colorado State University

Richard G. Mathieu James Madison University

James McDonald Monmouth University

Timothy J. McGuire Sam Houston State University

Kenneth L. Modesitt Indiana University-Purdue University Fort Wayne

Loretta Moore Jackson State University

Michael G. Murphy Concordia University Texas

2011 ABET ANNUAL REPORT

Scott Murray HCA Healthcare

Thomas L. Naps University of Wisconsin-Oshkosh

Mohamad Neilforoshan Stockton College

Lawrence J. Osborne Lamar University

Michael Oudshoorn Montclair State University

Lynn M. Peterson The University of Texas at Arlington

Andrew T. Phillips U.S. Naval Academy

Shari Plantz-Masters Regis University

George Pothering College of Charleston

David J. Powell Elon University

Jon A. Preston Southern Polytechnic State University

Rhys P. Jones The George Washington University

Martin R. Radley Carnegie Mellon University

Rajendra K. Raj Rochester Institute of Technology

Richard T. Redmond Virginia Commonwealth University

David G. Reed Portland State University

Rebecca H. Rutherfoord Southern Polytechnic State University

Roberta E. Sabin Loyola University Maryland

Hazem Said University of Cincinnati

Mohammed Samaka Qatar University Donald B. Sanderson East Tennessee State University

Mark J. Sebern Milwaukee School of Engineering

Stephen B. Seidman Texas State University-San Marcos

Sung Y. Shin South Dakota State University

Sajjan Shiva The University of Memphis

William D. Shoaff Florida Institute of Technology

Robert H. Sloan University of Illinois at Chicago

Milan E. Soklic University of Maryland University College

Lisa C. Spence University System of Georgia

Mark Stockman University of Cincinnati

Massood Towhidnejad Embry-Riddle Aeronautical University

George Trapp

John C. Turchek Robert Morris University

Thomas R. Turner University of Central Oklahoma

Paul T. Tymann Rochester Institute of Technology

John J. Uhran, Jr. University of Notre Dame

Joseph E. Urban Texas Tech University

Yaakov Varol University of Nevada-Reno

Paul Wagner University of Wisconsin-Eau Claire

Andy Wang Southern Polytechnic State University Pearl Y. Wang George Mason University

Christopher Ward SiriusXM, Inc.

Richard A. Wasniowski California State University, Dominguez Hills

Bob Weems The University of Texas at Arlington

Bruce A. White Quinnipiac University

Mary Jane Willshire Capella University

Jenq-Foung J. Yao Georgia College & State University

Gayle J. Yaverbaum Pennsylvania State University

Frank H. Young Rose-Hulman Institute of Technology

Stuart H. Zweben The Ohio State University

HPS - Health Physics Society

Phillip Patton University of Nevada-Las Vegas

David A. Schauer Georgetown University

IEEE

Ikhlas M. Abdel-Qader Western Michigan University

Imad Abouzahr Oklahoma State University

Nasser Alaraje Michigan Technological University

Rocio Alba-Flores Georgia Southern University

Lisa A. Anneberg Lawrence Technological University

Sohail Anwar Pennsylvania State University, Altoona Campus Stuart Asser City University of New York, Queensborough Community College

John O. Attia Prairie View A&M University

C.D. Avers

Orlando R. Baiocchi University of Washington Tacoma

Mark J. Balas University of Wyoming

Steven F. Barrett University of Wyoming

Melbourne Barton Telcordia Technologies

Eleanor Baum The Cooper Union

Theodore A. Bickart Colorado School of Mines

Wm. Hugh Blanton East Tennessee State University

Leonard J. Bohmann Michigan Technological University

William R. Boley Northrop Grumman Electronic Systems

Stephen F. Bonk The MITRE Corporation

Marcus M. Borhani X-Fab Texas, Inc.

Nazeih M. Botros Southern Illinois University at Carbondale

Jerry C. Brand Harris Corporation

Susan O. Brauer DeVry University

Lewis Brown South Dakota State University

Wayne Brown Marietta Ink & Toner J.W. Bruce Mississippi State University

Walter W. Buchanan Texas A&M University

Gerald Burnham The University of Texas at Dallas

Walter O. Burns Unisys Corp.

Karen L. Butler-Purry Texas A&M University

Luis Z. Cabeza Austin Energy

Bill D. Carroll The University of Texas at Arlington

Richard P. Case

Steven Case Minnesota State University, Mankato

C.L. Philip Chen The University of Texas at San Antonio

Young-Kai Chen Alcatel-Lucent

April Cheung

Mohamed F. Chouikha Howard University

David S. Cochran Cochran Technology Consulting

Edward R. Collins, Jr. Clemson University

David A. Conner University of Alabama at Birmingham

Kenneth F. Cooper Westinghouse Savannah River Co.

Douglas F. Corteville Iowa Western Community College

Charles E. Cote Caelum Research Corp.

Gerald E. Crain University of Oklahoma Paul B. Crilly Hewlett-Packard

Jose B. Cruz, Jr. The Ohio State University

Patricia D. Daniels Seattle University

Babak Dastgheib-Beheshti New York Institute of Technology

Nathaniel J. Davis, IV Air Force Institute of Technology

Joanne E. DeGroat The Ohio State University

Ronald R. DeLyser University of Denver

Fred W. DePiero California Polytechnic State University, San Luis Obispo

Satinderpaul S. Devgan Tennessee State University

Sandeep Dilwali Wentworth Institute of Technology

John P. Donohoe Mississippi State University

Gusteau Duclos DeVry College of New York

Glen P. Dudevoir U.S. Air Force Academy

Kurt V. Eckroth Waukesha County Technical College

Clyde T. Eisenbeis Emerson Process

John K. Estell Ohio Northern University

Perry K. Falk Indiana University-Purdue University Fort Wayne

Terri S. Fiez

Daniel M. Fleetwood Vanderbilt University Raymond E. Floyd Innovative Insights, Inc.

Sam K. Formby Appalachian State University

Stephen E. Frempong SUNY Canton

Venancio L. Fuentes County College of Morris

Ramesh S. Gaonkar Penram International

Mario J. Gonzalez The University of Texas at Austin

John N. Gowdy Clemson University

Robert Gray Pennsylvania State University

Ilya Grinberg State University of New York College at Buffalo

Thomas M. Hall, Jr. Northwestern State University of Louisiana

James H. Hammond L-3 Communications Ocean Systems

Paul S. Henry AT&T Laboratories

Lorraine M. Herger IBM Corporation

Robert J. Herrick Purdue University

Gerald T. Heydt Arizona State University

William T. Hicks Purdue University at New Albany

Steven M. Hietpas South Dakota State University

Stephen Horan NASA Langley Research Center

William B. Hudson University of Wisconsin-Platteville Rafiqul Islam Northwestern State University of Louisiana

Douglas W. Jacobson Iowa State University

Brent Jenkins Southern Polytechnic State University

Edwin C. Jones Iowa State University

Youakim Kalaani Georgia Southern University

Ahmed E. Kamal Iowa State University

Larry E. Kendrick The Mathworks

Mohan Ketkar Prairie View A&M University

Alan R. Klayton U.S. Air Force Academy

Tammy A. Kolarik The Johns Hopkins University Applied Physics Laboratory

James J. Komiak BAE Systems

Kathleen Kramer University of San Diego

K.S.P. "Pat" Kumar University of Minnesota-Minneapolis

James Lansford CSR, PLC

Mark E. Law University of Florida

Pamela Leigh-Mack Virginia State University

David M. LeVine NASA/Goddard Space Flight Center

Richard D. Lilley Harris Corp.

Paul I. Lin Indiana University-Purdue University Fort Wayne C. Steven Lingafelt IBM Corporation

Luis A. Lopez Hewlett-Packard

Stanley L. Love Softek

Syed M. Mahmud Wayne State University

Mary Marchegiano Delaware Tech

W. Vance McCollough Raytheon Company

Claire McCullough University of Tennessee at Chattanooga

James McDonald Monmouth University

Michael R. McQuade DuPont

Russ Meier Milwaukee School of Engineering

James Mikkelson Vitesse Semiconductor

Thomas G. Minnich Bridgemont Community and Technical College

Tony L. Mitchell North Carolina State University at Raleigh

Madhav Moganti Bell Labs, Alcatel-Lucent

Daniel J. Moore Rose-Hulman Institute of Technology

Todd Morton Western Washington University

S. Hossein Mousavinezhad Idaho State University

Amit Mukhopadhyay Alcatel-Lucent

Steven E. Muldoon Robert Bosch, LLC Gary Mullett Springfield Technical Community College

J. Keith Nelson Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute

Victor P. Nelson The Ohio State University

Robert L. Nevin

Stanley M. Nissen Raytheon Company

Franc E. Noel

Brian Norton Oklahoma State University

James D. Oliver, Jr. Northrop Grumman

Philip D. Olivier Lawrence Technological University

Robert G. Olsen Washington State University

Lance C. Perez University of Nebraska-Lincoln

Reinaldo J. Perez Jet Propulsion Laboratory (JPL), California Institute of Technology

Owe G. Petersen Milwaukee School of Engineering

Jay Porter Texas A&M University

Gregory K. Poston AT&T

Richard P. Pozzi Metropolitan State College of Denver

Suresh Rai Louisiana State University and A&M College

S.K. Ramesh California State University, Northridge

Albert J. Rosa Thomas-Rosa Partnership

Kenneth Rose Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute Helen Ryaciotaki-Boussalis California State University, Los Angeles

Ghassan A. Salim California University of Pennsylvania

William J. Sanitate Pragmatics Technology

Saleh M. Sbenaty Middle Tennessee State University

George Schanzenbach Pennsylvania State University

Cheryl B. Schrader Boise State University

Tomy Sebastian Nexteer Automotive

Hesham Shaalan U.S. Merchant Marine Academy

Deborah L. Sharer University of North Carolina at Charlotte

Dennis A. Silage Temple University

Massoud Sinai

Christopher J. Smith Purdue University North Central

Mark J.T. Smith Purdue University at West Lafayette

Mani Soma University of Washington

Arun K. Somani Iowa State University

Gregory D. Stanton Gentex Corporation

Joseph A. Tamashasky Lucent Technologies

Murray Teitell DeVry University, Long Beach

Gerald H. Thomas Milwaukee School of Engineering

Raul E. Torres Muñiz University of Puerto Rico Cherrice Traver Union College

Nick Tredennick Gilder Publishing

Steven R. Walk Old Dominion University

Richard Warren Vermont Technical College

Samuel G. White Indiana University-Purdue University Indianapolis

Douglas B. Williams Georgia Institute of Technology

Raphael W.H. Wong Booz Allen Hamilton

Sally L. Wood Santa Clara University

Keith D. Wright DeVry University, Washington, D.C.

Ece Yaprak Wayne State University

H.O. Yurtseven Indiana University-Purdue University Indianapolis

IIE – Institute of Industrial Engineers

Suraj M. Alexander University of Louisville

Adedeji B. Badiru Air Force Institute of Technology

Rajan Batta University at Buffalo (State University of New York)

Leslie F. Benmark DuPont Company

Bopaya Bidanda University of Pittsburgh

Kenneth Currie Tennessee Technological University

Larry G. David University of Missouri-Columbia Prasad Gavankar PepsiCo

Anand K. Gramopadhye Clemson University

Timothy J. Greene Western Michigan University

Dan Hall Hill-Rom Co., Inc.

Sunderesh S. Heragu University of Louisville

Denise F. Jackson University of Tennessee, Space Institute

Keith A. Johnson Questar Gas Company

Thomas Keyser Western New England College

Abu S. Masud Wichita State University

K.J. Min Iowa State University

Richard M. Morris Georgia State University

Saeid Motavalli California State University, East Bay

Sundaram Narayanan Wright State University

Edward Pines New Mexico State University

Michael W. Riley University of Nebraska-Lincoln

Sanjiv Sarin North Carolina A&T State University

LuAnn Sims Auburn University

Meenakshi Sundaram Tennessee Technological University

William J. Thompson University of Central Florida

Harvey Wolfe University of Pittsburgh

INCOSE – The International Council on Systems Engineering

John V. Farr U.S. Military Academy

Rashmi Jain Stevens Institute of Technology

ISA – International Society of Automation

Robert P. Kosar Grand Isle Group

SME – Society of Manufacturing Engineers Jeffrey Abell

General Motors Corp.

Walter W. Buchanan Texas A&M University

Robert W. Dummer Synovis Surgical Innovations

Ismail Fidan Tennessee Technological University

Lloyd R. Heinze Texas Tech University

Sunderesh S. Heragu University of Louisville

Frank Hughes The Boeing Company

Stanley N. Ihekweazu South Carolina State University

Swatantra K. Kachhal University of Michigan-Dearborn

Niaz Latif Purdue University Calumet

Young B. Moon Syracuse University

Ramesh V. Narang Indiana University-Purdue University Fort Wayne

Shirish L. Patil University of Alaska Fairbanks

Philip A. Schenewerk Apache Corporation Daniel E. Skurski National Trappers Association

Vederaman Sriraman Texas State University-San Marcos

Jyhwen Wang Texas A&M University

G.P. Willhite University of Kansas

Carl R. Williams The University of Memphis

SME-AIME – Society for Mining, Metallurgy, and Exploration

Dan Alexander NIOSH, Mine Emergency Response

David R. Hammond Hammond International Group

Satya Harpalani Southern Illinois University

Jerry D. Higgins Colorado School of Mines

Rick Q. Honaker University of Kentucky

Earl R. Hoskins Texas A&M University at Qatar

Nils I. Johansen University of Southern Indiana

David G. McMahill DuPont Company

Gary L. Skaggs Agapito Associates, Inc.

Eric P. Sprouls University of Southern Indiana

Terril E. "Ted" Wilson University of Arizona

Diane Wolfgram Montana Tech of the University of Montana

Tuncel M. Yegulalp Columbia University

SNAME – Society of Naval Architects and Marine Engineers

Boris S. Butman U.S. Merchant Marine Academy

Kurt J. Colella U.S. Coast Guard Academy

James A. Harbach U.S. Merchant Marine Academy

Richard W. Kimball

Robert G. Latorre University of New Orleans

James H. Miller University of Rhode Island

Paul J. Roden U.S. Coast Guard

William J. Sembler U.S. Merchant Marine Academy

Edwin G. Wiggins Webb Institute

SPE – Society of Petroleum Engineers

Kashy Aminian West Virginia University

Jeffrey G. Callard Shambhala Mountain Center

Godwin A. Chukwu University of Alaska Fairbanks

SPIE – The International Society for Optics and Photonics

Eric G. Johnson Clemson University

Scott Teare New Mexico Institute of Mining and Technology

TMS – The Minerals, Metals, and Materials Society

Maher S. Amer Wright State University

Thomas R. Bieler Michigan State University

Carl J. Boehlert Michigan State University Stephen H. Carr Northwestern University

Deborah K. Fourney Metallurgical Technologies, Inc.

Biman Ghosh Rockwell Automation

Ronald Gibala University of Michigan

Mark A. Palmer Kettering University

Vilupanur A. Ravi California State Polytechnic University, Pomona

Raghu Srinivasan Wright State University

Chester J. Van Tyne Colorado School of Mines

Henry J. White HAYNES International

Steven M. Yalisove University of Michigan

ABET Professional Staff

Executive Office

Executive Director Michael K.J. Milligan

Senior Director for Society Relations Charles W. Hickman

Senior Assistant to the Executive Director Vincent A. Fields, Sr.

International Relations Manager Daniela Iacona

Accreditation

Managing Director for Accreditation Joseph L. Sussman

Senior Director for Accreditation Maryanne Weiss

Accreditation Manager Ellen L. Stokes

International Accreditation Specialist Sherri Hersh

Assistant to the Managing Director for Accreditation Beth Mundy

Project Adjunct for Accreditation Robert S. Fredell

Applied Science Accreditation Commission (ASAC)

Adjunct Accreditation Director, Applied Science Amanda Reid Accreditation Assistant, Applied Science Accreditation Commission Bryna Ashley

Computing Accreditation Commission (CAC)

Adjunct Accreditation Director, Computing Arthur L. Price

Accreditation Assistant, Computing Accreditation Commission Norma A. Belton

Engineering Accreditation Commission (EAC)

Adjunct Accreditation Director, Engineering M. Dayne Aldridge

Accreditation Assistant, Engineering Accreditation Commission Stephanie R. Jackson

Technology Accreditation Commission (TAC)

Adjunct Accreditation Directors, Technology David E. Hornbeck Frank Hart

Accreditation Assistant, Technology Accreditation Commission Bryna Ashley

Planning and Operations

Managing Director for Planning and Operations and Chief Financial Officer Lance K. Hoboy

Human Resources Manager Rachelle R. Daucher

Office Operations Specialist Jennifer Knode

Finance and Accounting

Director for Accounting Jessica Silwick

Staff Accountant Kimberly Turner

Accounts Payable Specialist LaTasha McKinney

Information Management

Chief Information Officer Joseph L. Sussman

Director for Information Management Marty Flanigan

Senior Software Applications Developer Hwan-Kyung Chung

Software Applications Developer Venugopal Tati

Professional Services

Managing Director for Professional Services Ashley Ater Kranov

Educational Research and Assessment

Educational Research and Assessment Manager Rochelle L. Williams

Adjunct Educational Research and Assessment Director James N. Warnock

Training

Training Manager Jorge Higbie

AdjunctTraining Director Michael S. Leonard

Communications and Marketing

Managing Director for Communications and Marketing Marc Abshire

Assistant to the Managing Director for Communications and Marketing Hope Joseph-Nelson

Communications and Marketing

Web Content Manager Kate Bronislawski

Communications and

Marketing Manager Erika A. Williams

Communications Specialist Keryl Cryer

Meetings and Events

Meetings and Events Manager Donna Clark



111 Market Place, Suite 1050 Baltimore, MD 21202 USA Phone: +1.410.347.7700 www.abet.org

Copyright[©] 2012 by ABET Printed in the United States of America. All rights reserved.